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Office of the Washington State Auditor 
Pat McCarthy 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

April 30, 2020 

Board of Trustees 
The Evergreen State College 
Olympia, Washington 

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate 
discretely presented component units of  The Evergreen State College, as of and for the  year ended 
June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
College’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.   

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not 
audit the financial statements of The Evergreen State College Foundation (the Foundation), which 
represents 100 percent of the assets, net position and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented 
component unit.  Those statements were audited by other auditors, whose report has been furnished to 
us, and in our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Foundation, is based solely 
on the report of the other auditors.  We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  The financial statements of the Foundation 
were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the College’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the College’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.   

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred 
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type 
activities and the aggregate discretely presented component units of  The Evergreen State College, as of 
June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Matters of Emphasis 

The financial statements of The Evergreen State College, an agency of the state of Washington, are 
intended to present the financial position, and the changes in financial position, and where applicable, 
cash flows of only the respective portion of the activities of the state of Washington that is attributable 
to the transactions of the College and its aggregate discretely presented component units. They do not 
purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the state of Washington as of June 30, 2018, 
the changes in its financial position, or where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion 
is not modified with respect to this matter.  

As discussed in Note 19 to the financial statements, in February 2020, a state of emergency was declared 
that could have a negative financial effect on the College. Management’s plans in response to this matter 
are also described in Note 19. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and required supplementary information listed in the table of contents be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
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supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the College’s basic financial statements as a whole. The table of contents and list of Board of 
Trustees and Administration is presented for the purposes of additional analysis and is not a required 
part of the basic financial statements of the College.  Such information has not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue our report dated April 30, 2020, 
on our consideration of the College’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other 
matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the College’s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

Sincerely, 

Pat McCarthy 

State Auditor 

Olympia, WA 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
__________________________________________________________ 

The Evergreen State College 

The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and activities of The 
Evergreen State College (the College) for the fiscal years (FY) ended June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018.  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides the readers an objective and easily readable 
analysis of the College’s financial performance for the year, based on currently known facts and 
conditions. This discussion has been prepared by management and should be read in conjunction with 
the financial statements and accompanying notes. 

Reporting Entity 

The Evergreen State College is one of six state-assisted, four-year public institutions of higher education 
in the state of Washington, providing baccalaureate and graduate educational programs to 
approximately 2,900 students.  The College was established in 1967 and its primary purpose is to 
prepare individuals for successful contributions to society through their careers and in their leadership 
roles as citizens. 

The College’s campus is located in Olympia, Washington, a community of approximately 46,500 
residents.  The College also has operations in Tacoma and along the Olympic Peninsula on the Quinault 
Indian Reservation.  The College is governed by an eight member Board of Trustees appointed by the 
governor of the state with the consent of the state Senate.  One of the members is a full-time student 
of the College.  By statute, the Board of Trustees has full control of the College and its property of 
various kinds, except as otherwise provided by law.  

Using the Financial Statements 

The College reports as a business-type activity as defined by Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for 
Public Colleges and Universities, as amended. Under this model, the financial report consists of three 
financial statements, the Statement of Net Position, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes 
in Net Position and the Statement of Cash Flow. The Statement of Net Position provides information 
about the College at a moment in time, the June 30 fiscal year end. The Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position and the Statement of Cash Flows provide information about the 
College’s activities and operations during the fiscal year. The financial statements, in conjunction with 
the Notes to the Financial Statements, provide a comprehensive way to assess the College’s financial 
health. The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units requires an 
organization to report an organization that raises and holds economic resources for the direct benefit of 
a government unit as a component unit. Under this requirement, The Evergreen State College 
Foundation is a component unit of the College and the foundation’s financial statements and the notes 
to their financial statements are incorporated in this financial report.   

THE EVERGREEN STATE COLLEGE 2019 ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
__________________________________________________________ 

Impact from Changes in Reporting Requirements 

Recent GASB accounting and reporting changes (GASB Statement No. 68, GASB Statement No. 73 and 
GASB Statement No. 75) have significantly impacted the amounts reported on the Statements of Net 
Position, particularly unrestricted net position. In reading this publication it is important to consider the 
effects of these pronouncements especially when comparing current year results to prior year amounts. 

Statements of Net Positions 

The Statements of Net Positions provides information about the College’s financial position, and 
presents the College’s assets, liabilities, and net positions at year-end. 

A condensed comparison of the Statements of Net Positions as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 follows: 

Condensed Statements of Net Positions 
As of June 30 (in thousands) 2019 2018 

Assets 
Current assets $42,500 $46,196 
Capital, net 186,421 189,507 
Other non-current assets 6,113 6,399 

Total Assets 235,034 242,102 
Deferred Outflows 4,966 3,775 
Liabilities 

Current liabilities 11,763 16,765 
Other non-current liabilities 62,688 70,624 

Total Liabilities 74,451 87,389 
Deferred Inflows 18,245 8,827 

Total Net Position $147,304 $149,661 

Assets 

The major components of the assets category are cash, receivables and capital assets.  Total assets 
decreased by $7.1 million from FY 2018 to FY 2019.  

Current assets consist primarily of cash, short-term investments, accounts receivables, net and 
inventories.  Current assets decreased by $3.7 million from FY 2018 to FY 2019, primarily the result of a 
$2.9 million decrease in cash and cash equivalents and a $1 million decrease in Funds Held with State 
Treasurer.  The decrease in cash was mostly the result of $2.1 million less in unearned revenue in FY 
2019 than FY 2018.  Unearned revenue is money received in advance of providing services, for example 
prepaid housing rent or prepaid summer school tuition.  The decrease in Funds Held with State 
Treasurer is expected because FY 2019 was the second year of the biennium when more capital 
expenditures occur which reduces the amount of capital money held at the Treasurer. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
__________________________________________________________ 
Capital assets decreased in FY 2019 by about $3 million.  Net capitalized assets during the year were 
$4.6 million including completion and capitalization of the Fiber Arts Studio and purchases of network 
equipment.  The net capitalized assets were offset by current year depreciation of $7.6 million.    

Deferred outflows increased by about $1.2 million and are primarily related to implementation of GASB 
Statements 68, 73 and 75.  The College uses the Participating Employer Financial Information report 
prepared by the state Department of Retirement Services to determine deferred outflows.  Deferred 
outflows consist primarily of retirement and Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) contributions 
made after the measurement date and differences between expected and actual experience.  

Liabilities 

The excess of current assets over current liabilities of $30.7 million in FY 2019 reflects the College’s 
continuing ability to meet its short-term obligations with liquid or easily liquidated assets.  Current 
liabilities typically fluctuate depending on the timing of accounts payable payments and the receipt of 
deposits and revenue that is applicable to the next fiscal year. 

Liabilities include amounts payable to suppliers for goods and services, accrued payroll, leave and 
related liabilities, debt, deposits held for others, unearned revenue and pension expenses. 

Current liabilities decreased by about $5.0 million from FY 2018 to FY 2019.  The decrease was primarily 
due to a $2.1million decrease in unearned revenues, mostly the result of a year-over-year decrease of 
$500,000 in summer school tuition received in advance of the summer quarter starting and the receipt 
of a $700,000 grant at the end of FY 2018 to complete the Fiber Arts Studio that we did not also receive 
at the end of FY 2019.  Additionally, there was a decrease of $2.8 million in the actuarially calculated 
OPEB liability.   

Noncurrent liabilities decreased by $7.9 million from FY 2018 to FY 2019 primarily due to  the changes in 
GASB No. 68, 73 and 75 of $6.3 million and a reduction of $1.4 million in long-term debt during FY 2019.  

Deferred inflows relate primarily to implementation of GASB Statements 68, 73, and 75 increased by 
$9.4 million mostly due to changes in actuarial assumptions used to calculate the liabilities and 
differences between projected and actual investment earnings on applicable plan assets.  

The College uses the Participating Employer Financial Information report prepared by the state 
Department of Retirement Services and the TESC Supplemental Retirement Plan 2018 Actuarial 
Valuation to determine deferred inflows.  Deferred inflows relate to changes in actuarial assumptions 
used to calculate the liabilities and differences between projected and actual investment earnings on 
applicable plan assets.  

Net Position 

Net position represents the difference between the College’s assets and deferred outflows, less 
liabilities and deferred inflows.  The change in net position measures whether the overall financial 
condition has improved or deteriorated during the year and is driven by the difference between 
revenues and expenses.  Net position decreased by $2.4 million in FY 2019. 

The College reports its net position in four categories: 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
__________________________________________________________ 

Invested in Capital Assets (Net of Related Debt) –  
This is the College’s total investment in property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure net of 
accumulated depreciation and outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets. 

Restricted Net Position-Expendable – 
This consists of resources in which the College is legally or contractually obligated to spend in 
accordance with restrictions placed by donor and/or external parties that have placed time or purpose 
restrictions on the use of the asset.  The primary expendable funds for the College are student loans, 
capital projects funds and the expendable portion of endowments. 

Non Expendable –  
Consists of funds in which the donor or external party has imposed the restriction that the corpus or 
principal is not available for expenditures but for investment purposes only. 

Unrestricted Net Position –  
These are all the other funds available to the College for the general and educational obligations to meet 
current expenses for any lawful purpose. Unrestricted net position are not subject to externally imposed 
stipulations; however, the College has designated the majority of unrestricted net position for various 
academic and college support functions.  This is also the net position classification most affected by the 
implementation of GASB pronouncements regarding account and reporting of long-term liabilities.   

Evergreen’s net position as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 are summarized as follows: 

Condensed Net Positions 2019 2018 
     As of June 30 (in thousands) 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt  $  165,964  $  167,685 
Restricted: 

Pensions 644 464 
Non-expendable: Scholarships and 
Professorships 2,155 2,120 
Expendable 5,793 5,880 

Unrestricted (27,252) (26,488) 
Total net position  $  147,304  $    149,661 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Positions 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Positions presents the detail of the changes 
of total net position for the College. The objective of the statement is to provide information about the 
operating performance of the College by presenting the revenue and expenditures, both operating and 
non-operating, along with any other revenue, expenses, gains and losses of the College. Generally, 
operating revenues are revenues earned by the College in exchange for providing goods and services. 
Operating expenses are defined as expenses incurred in the normal operation of the College, including 
a provision for allowance of depreciation on property and equipment assets. The difference between 
operating revenues and operating expenses is the operating loss. The College will always be expected to 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
__________________________________________________________ 
show an operating loss since state appropriations are shown as non-operating revenues as required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the rule setting body for accounting standards 
for the College.   

A summary of the College’s Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Positions for the 
Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 follows: 

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Positions 
As of June 30 (in thousands) 

2019 2018 

Operating revenues (by major source) $  58,105 $      60,479 
Operating expenses 103,712 108,032 
     Net operating loss (45,607) (47,553) 
Non-operating revenues (by major source) 40,716 40,104 
Non-operating expenses - - 
     Gain(loss) before other revenues (4,891) (7,449) 
Other revenues and expenses 2,534 2,737 
     Increase in net assets (2,357) (4,712) 
Net assets at beginning of year 149,661 192,164 

Prior Period Adjustment - (1,970) 
Cum effect change in accounting prin - (35,821) 

Net assets at end of year $  147,304 $149,661 

Operating and Non-operating Revenues 

Operating revenues consist primarily of tuition and fees (net of scholarship discounts and allowances), 
grants & contracts, and sales and services revenue generated by auxiliary enterprises and other 
support operations.  Non-operating revenues consist primarily of state appropriations, investment 
income and Pell grants for student financial aid.  Other revenues and expenses are derived almost 
entirely from state capital appropriations. 

In FY 2019, the College’s operating revenue decreased by $2.4 million. 

Net tuition revenues (tuition and fees less scholarship allowances) decreased by $4.1 million when 
compared to FY 2018 due to a declining enrollments.  To address the decline in tuition revenues, the 
College has developed an aggressive “Renewal Plan” designed to increase both recruitment and 
retention of students.  

Offsetting the decline in net tuition was increases in federal grants and contracts of $1.4 million and 
nongovernmental grants and contracts of $800 thousand.  The increase in federal grants and contracts 
was primarily due to an increase of $1 million in Upward Bound and some other grants.  The increase in 
nongovernmental grants and contracts was primarily due to an increase of $690 thousand in grants 
received for the Longhouse Educational and Cultural Center. 
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Non-operating revenues increased in FY 2019 by $600 thousand primarily due to an increase in state 
appropriations of $1.5 million to cover legislatively approved compensation and other state mandated 
operating increases offset by a decrease in the amount received for the Federal Pell grant program due 
to decreased enrollments. 

The following graph and table reflect the percentage of revenue received by source of revenue: 

 Revenues by Source 
 As of June 30 (in thousands) 2019 2018 
Student tuition and fees, net $   25,761 25% $  29,863 29% 
Grants & contracts 28,068 28% 25,927 25% 
Auxiliary services 11,310 11% 11,729 11% 
State appropriations - operating 30,838 30% 29,292 28% 
State appropriations - capital 2,534 3% 853 1% 
Investment income 1,977 2% 3,569 3% 
Capital Contribution - 0% 1,883 2% 
Other revenues 867 1% 1,091 1% 

Total revenues $  101,355 100% $ 104,207 100% 

Operating Expenses 

In 2019, the College’s total operating expenses decreased by about $4.3 million. The largest decrease 
was in wages of $1.9 million and in benefits of $2.2 million as the College reduced staff to help offset 
tuition revenue declines.   

25%

28%
11%

30%

3% 2% 1%

FY 2019 Revenue by Source

Student tuition and fees,
net
Grants & contracts

Auxiliary services

State appropriations -
operating
State appropriations -
capital
Investment income



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
__________________________________________________________ 
The graph below reflects the percentage of operating expenses by object: 

Operating Expenses By Object 

As of June 30 (in thousands) 2019 2018 
Salaries & wages    $   46,507 45%     $ 48,447 45% 
Benefits    14,482 14%   16,903 16% 
Scholarship and fellowships    13,530 13%   14,471 13% 
Supplies & materials    15,458 15%   14,227 13% 
Depreciation    7,637 7%     7,749 7% 
Purchased services    3,819 4%     3,909 4% 
Utilities    2,279 2%     2,514 2% 

Total Expenses  $ 103,712 100%  $ 108,032 100% 

Capital Asset  

During FY 2019 the College continued to increase its investment in capital assets. 

• The Fiber Arts Studio construction was completed at a total cost of $2,186,650.
• The College purchased approximately $1.1 million in much needed IT network equipment to

replace old and outdated equipment.

In accordance with the College’s 10-year Facilities Master Plan, the College will continue to invest in the 
development of new capital assets and capital improvements and preservation of the infrastructure of 
state assets.  
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__________________________________________________________ 

Financial Summary and Economic Factors That Will Affect the Future 

The State provided funding to implement the legislatively approved 3% annual compensation increase 
for all College employees in both fiscal years of the 2019-21 biennium.  The legislature also invested in 
the College’s Physiology program by providing funding to increase faculty to address the increased 
interest in the program.     

For the 2019-21 biennium, the legislature authorized a new dedicated revenue source for public 
institutions of higher education, the Workforce Education Investment Account that dramatically 
expands the amount of state support for low income college students who are Washington residents. 
This additional aid should help increase the number of students attending Evergreen...    

The 2019-21 biennial capital budget includes funding to create new space for a student health care 
center, address HVAC and seismic issues in aging building and to create a sustainable master plan for 
campus utilities.  

Enrollment has been declining for the past several years which the College is addressing through the 
implementation of a robust three-year renewal plan.  However, if enrollments continue to decline the 
College could continue to experience a decline in tuition revenue. 



The Evergreen State College
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2019

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.

2019
Assets

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 29,998,123$  
Due from State Treasurer 341,798 
Funds held with State Treasurer 2,477,565 
Accounts receivable, net 8,301,674 
Student loan receivables, net 416,261 
Inventories 964,861 

Total current assets 42,500,282 

Non-Current Assets
Investments 3,110,402 
Student Loan Receivables, net 2,358,814 
Net Pension Asset 643,782 
Capital Assets, net of depreciation 186,420,967 

Total non-current assets 192,533,965 
Total assets 235,034,247 

Deferred Outflows
Relating to pension 3,433,361 
Related to OPEB 1,512,174 
Deferred Outflow on Refundings 20,561 

Total deferred outflows 4,966,096 

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 4,845,971 
Unearned Revenues 2,546,346 
Deposits Payable 131,935 
Compensated Absences 2,160,565 
Current portion, Total OPEB Liability 506,005 
Current portion, Total Pension Liability 137,000 
Current portion of bonds and notes payable 1,435,026 

Total current liabilities 11,762,848 

Non-Current Liabilities
Compensated Absences 769,077 
Total Pension Liability (GASB 73) 6,681,000 
Total OPEB Liability (GASB 75) 27,052,533 
Net Pension Liabilities (GASB 68) 9,143,907 
Long Term Debt 19,042,277 

Total non-current liabilities 62,688,794 

Total liabilities 74,451,640 

Deferred Inflows
Relating to pension 5,353,286 
Relating to OPEB (GASB 75) 12,891,562 

Total deferred inflows 18,244,848 

Net Position
Net Investment in capital assets 165,964,226 
Restricted for:

Pensions 643,782 
Nonexpendable:

Scholarships and professorships 2,154,440 
Expendable:

Loans 5,265,738 
Endowment earnings 527,394              

Unrestricted (27,251,726) 

Total net position 147,303,854$  
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

2019

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash, including restricted cash 3,437,882$            
Investment cash 1,349,715 
Beneficial interest in lead trust 150,000 
Unconditional promises to give, current 66,345 

Total Current Assets 5,003,942              

OTHER ASSETS
Investments 16,405,660            
Beneficial interest in lead trust 1,393,883 
Long-term unconditional promises to give 32,132 

Total Other Assets 17,831,675            

Total Assets 22,835,617$          

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 84,314$  
Payable to College 201,141 

Total Current Liabilities 285,455 

Total Liabilities 285,455 

NET ASSETS
Without Donor Restriction 954,617 
Without Donor Restriction-Board Designated 894,913 

Total net assets without donor restrictions 1,849,530              

With Donor Restriction 19,763,080            
With Donor Restriction-Board Designated 937,552 

Total net assets with donor restrictions 20,700,632            

Total Net Assets 22,550,162            

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 22,835,617$          

THE EVERGREEN STATE COLLEGE FOUNDATION
Statement of Financial Position

Year Ended June 30, 2019

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 



The Evergreen State College
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.

2019
Operating Revenues

Student tuition and fees 37,127,884           
Less scholarship discounts and allowances (11,367,382)          
Auxiliary enterprise sales, net 10,822,417           
State and local grants and contracts 10,158,483           
Federal grants and contracts 5,850,784             
Nongovernmental grants and contracts 4,158,450             
Other operating revenue 734,601 
Sales and services of educational activities 487,842 
Interest on loans to students 132,153 

Total operating revenue 58,105,231           

Operating Expenses
Salaries and wages 46,507,444           
Benefits 14,482,464           
Scholarships and fellowships 13,529,556           
Supplies and materials 15,458,689           
Depreciation 7,636,751             
Purchased services 3,818,483             
Utilities 2,278,954             

Total operating expenses 103,712,341         

Operating loss (45,607,109)          

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
State appropriations 30,838,000           
Federal pell grant revenue 7,900,844             
Investment income, gains and losses 2,808,535             
Debt service (831,683) 

Net non-operating revenues 40,715,696           

Income/(Loss) before contributions (4,891,414)            

Capital Contribution - 
Capital appropriations 2,534,322             

Increase/(Decrease) in net position (2,357,092)            

Net Position
Net position, beginning of year 149,660,946         

Net position, end of year 147,303,854$       



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Without With 2019
Donor Restriction Donor Restriction Total

SUPPORT AND REVENUES
Gifts and contributions 206,689$              2,948,572$           3,155,260$      
In-kind support from College 1,324,867             - 1,324,867 
Investment income 127,127 690,030 817,157 
Gift fees 84,150 - 84,150 
Reclassifications and transfers 104,850 (104,850) - 
Net assets released from restrictions 1,756,083             (1,756,083)            - 

Total support and revenues 3,603,765             1,777,669             5,381,433        

EXPENSES
Program services:

Grants and scholarships 1,875,189             - 1,875,189 
Other College support 243,258 - 243,258 

Total program services 2,118,447             - 2,118,447 

Support Services:
Management and General 950,644 - 950,644 
Fundraising 603,851 - 603,851 

Total support services 1,554,494             - 1,554,494 

Total expenses 3,672,942             - 3,672,942 

 (Decrease) increase in net assets (69,177) 1,777,669             1,708,492        

NET ASSETS
Beginning of year 1,918,707             18,922,963           20,841,670      

Ending Net Assets 1,849,530$           20,700,632$         22,550,162$    

THE EVERGREEN STATE COLLEGE FOUNDATION
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended June 30, 2019



The Evergreen State College
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.

2019
Cash flows from operating activities

Student tuition and fees 32,080,946$              
Grants and contracts 20,167,717 
Sales and services of educational activities 487,842 
Auxiliary enterprise sales 10,822,417 
Payments to employees (62,177,276) 
Payment to vendors (22,078,963) 
Payment for scholarships and fellowships (20,543,261) 

Net cash used by operating activities (41,240,579) 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
State operating appropriations 30,838,000 
Direct lending receipts 19,694,450 
Direct lending disbursements (19,438,219) 
Agency fund receipts 748,683 
Agency fund disbursements (738,419) 
Federal pell grant receipts 7,900,844 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 39,005,339 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Capital appropriations 2,534,323 
Purchase of capital assets (5,281,515) 
Principal paid on capital debt (1,367,882) 
Debt Service Expenses and Interest (831,683) 

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (4,946,757) 

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments
Income from investments, net 4,255,145 

Net cash provided by investing activities 4,255,145 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,926,852) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 32,924,976 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 29,998,123$              

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash used by
Operating Activities

2019
Operating Loss (45,607,109)$            

Depreciation expense w Amortization 7,636,751 
Net Pension Expense (1,915,343) 

Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (290,319) 
Loans receivable 683,198 
Inventory (140,818) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (468,035) 
Unearned revenues (2,081,149) 
Deposits 128,255 
Net Pension Obligation Expense (34,679) 
OPEB non Pension expense 848,669 

Net cash used by operating activities (41,240,579)$            



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 

2019

Change in net assets 1,708,492$         
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net 

cash provided by operating activities:
Contributions restricted for long term purposes (150,665) 
Decrease in unconditional promises to give 86,540 
Decrease in Split-Interest Agreements 131,869
Proceeds from sale of donated stock 520,154 
Donated marketable securities (447,843)             
Increase in accounts payable 28,152 
(Decrease) Increase in payable to College (279,609)
Decrease (Increase) in other receivable 16,533

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 1,613,623           

(Purchase) sale of investment (1,526,043)          
Investment Income added to investments (286,222)             
Unrealized gains on investments (278,842)             
Loss on donated marketable securities 3,714

Net cash used by investing activities (2,087,393)          

Contributions restricted for long-term purposes 150,665 
Net cash provided by financing activities 150,665 

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (323,105)             

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of year 3,760,987           

End of year 3,437,882$         

Non-Cash Transactions - Contributions in kind 1,833,388$         

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS APPLIED TO INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

THE EVERGREEN STATE COLLEGE FOUNDATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019



Notes to the Financial Statements    June 30, 2019 

Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Financial Reporting Entity 
The Evergreen State College (the College) is a 
comprehensive institution of higher education offering 
baccalaureate and master’s degrees.  The College is an 
agency of the State of Washington, and is governed by 
an eight-member Board of Trustees appointed by the 
Governor and confirmed by the State Senate.  The 
College’s financial activity is included in the general 
purpose financial statements of the State of 
Washington. 

Financial Statement Presentation 
The financial statements of the College for the year 
ended June 30, 2019 have been prepared in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
is the accepted accounting standard setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial 
reporting principles.  These financial statements have 
been prepared in accordance with GASB Statement No. 
35, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis for Public Colleges and 
Universities, and GASB No. 37 & 38.   

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has 
issued Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting 
Entity: Omnibus, an amendment of GASB Statements 
No. 14 and No. 34.  This statement modifies certain 
requirements for inclusion of component units in the 
financial reporting entity.  

Under GASB Statement Numbers 61 and 39 criteria, The 
Evergreen State College Foundation, established as a tax 
exempt, nonprofit organization under Section 501(c)(3) 
of the Internal Revenue Code, is considered a legally 
separate component unit of the College and is discretely 
presented in the College’s financial statements.  The 
Foundation is considered a discretely presented 
component unit because it has a separate board of 
directors, but is fiscally dependent on and provides 
benefits exclusively to the College. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the 
Foundation distributed approximately $1.9 million to 
the College for restricted and unrestricted purposes.  
Intra-entity transactions and balances between the 
College and the Foundation are not eliminated for 
financial statement presentation.  Audited financial 
statements of the Foundation may be found at 
www.evergreen.edu/foundation/. 

Basis of Accounting 
For financial reporting purposes, the College is 
considered as a special purpose government engaged in 
business-type activities as defined by GASB Statement 
No. 35.  Accordingly, the College’s financial statements 
have been presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. 
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded 
when an obligation has been incurred.  Grants and 
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all 
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have 
been met.   

The College reports capital assets net of accumulated 
depreciation, and reports depreciation expense in the 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
Positions.   

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For the purposes of the statements of cash flow, the 
College considers all highly liquid investments with an 
original maturity of 90 days or less to be cash 
equivalents.  Funds invested through the State 
Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool are also 
considered cash equivalents.  Cash in the investment 
portfolio is not included in cash and cash equivalents as 
it is held for investing purposes. 

Investments 
The College, through its investment policy, where 
applicable, manages its exposure to custodial credit 
risk, credit risk, concentration of credit risk and 
interest rate risk by investing only in eligible 
investments authorized by State statute found in 
RCW 39 and 43.  Investments are discussed further in 
Note 2. 

Accounts Receivable 
Accounts receivable consists of tuition and fee charges 
to students and auxiliary enterprise services provided to 
students, faculty and staff.  Receivables also include 
amounts due from the federal, state and local 
governments, or private sources, in connection with 
reimbursement of allowable expenditures made 
pursuant to the College’s grants and contracts.  
Accounts receivable is recorded net of any estimated 
uncollectible amount. 

Inventories 
Inventories consist primarily of merchandise and 
consumables held by auxiliary and internal service 
departments.  They are valued at cost using the first in, 
first out method. 
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Capital Assets 
Land, buildings, equipment, and library resources are 
stated at cost or, if acquired by gift, at acquisition value 
at the date of the gift.  Additions, replacements, major 
repairs, and renovations are capitalized.   

The capitalization threshold for intangibles, such as 
computer software is $1 million, a $100,000 or greater 
threshold for buildings and infrastructure, and $5,000 
or greater for equipment.  The purchase of land is 
capitalized regardless of cost.  Depreciation is 
computed using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets, generally 15 to 50 
years for building components, 20 to 50 years for 
infrastructure and land improvements, 15 years for 
library resources and 5 to 7 years for equipment. 

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources 
Changes in net pension liability not included in pension 
expense are reported as deferred outflows of resources 
or deferred inflows of resources. Employer contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date of the net pension 
liability are reported as deferred outflows of resources. 

Unearned Revenue   
Unearned revenues occur when funds have been 
collected in advance of an event, such as advance ticket 
sales, summer quarter tuition, and unspent cash 
advances on certain grants. 

Compensated Absences 
College employees accrue annual leave at rates based on 
length of service and sick leave at the rate of one day (8 
hours) per month.  Both are recorded as liabilities.  
Employees are entitled to either the present value of 
25% of his/her unused sick leave upon retirement or 25% 
of his/her net accumulation for the year in which it 
exceeds 480 hours. 

Net Pension Liability 
TESC records pension obligations equal to the net 
pension liability for its defined benefit plans. The net 
pension liability is measured as the total pension 
liability, less the amount of the pension plan’s fiduciary 
net position. The fiduciary net position and changes in 
net position of the defined benefit plans have been 
measured consistent with the accounting policies used 
by the plans. The total pension liability is determined 
based upon discounting projected benefit payments 
based on the benefit terms and legal agreements existing 
at the pension plan’s fiscal year end. Projected 

benefit payments are discounted using a single rate 
that reflects the expected rate of return on investments, 
to the extent that plan assets are available to pay 
benefits, and a tax-exempt, high-quality municipal bond 
rate when plan assets are not available. Pension 
expense is recognized for benefits earned during the 
measurement period, interest on the unfunded liability 
and changes in benefit terms. The differences between 
expected and actual performance and changes in 
assumptions about future economic factors are 
reported as deferred inflows or outflows and are 
recognized over the average expected remaining service 
period for employees eligible for pension benefits. The 
differences between expected and actual returns are 
reported as deferred inflows or outflows and are 
recognized over five years. 

New Accounting Pronouncements 
On July 1, 2018, the college adopted GASB Statement 
No. 83 “Certain Asset Retirement Obligations”. This 
Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting 
for certain asset retirement obligations (AROs). An ARO 
is a legally enforceable liability associated with the 
retirement of a tangible capital asset. The determination 
of when the liability is incurred should be based on the 
occurrence of external laws, regulations, contracts, or 
court judgments, together with the occurrence of an 
internal event that obligates a government to perform 
asset retirement activities. At this time, the college 
determined there were no AROs. 

Scholarship Discounts and Allowances 
Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other 
revenues from students, are reported net of scholarship 
discounts and allowances in the Statements of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Positions.  
Scholarship discounts and allowances are the difference 
between the stated charge for goods and services 
provided by the College, and the amount that is paid by 
students and/or third parties making payments on the 
students’ behalf.  Certain governmental grants, such as 
Pell grants, and other federal, state or non-governmental 
programs are recorded as either operating or non-
operating revenues in the College’s financial statements.  
To the extent that revenues from such programs are 
used to satisfy tuition and fees and other student 
charges, the College has recorded a scholarship discount 
and allowance. 

State Appropriations 
The State of Washington appropriates funds to the 
College on both an annual and biennial basis.  These 
revenues are reported as non-operating revenues on the 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in 
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Net Positions, and recognized as such when the related 
expenses are incurred. 

Operating Revenues/Expenses 
Operating revenues consist of tuition and fees, grants 
and contracts, sales and service of educational activities 
and auxiliary enterprise revenues.  Operating expenses 
include salaries, wages, fringe benefits, utilities, 
supplies and materials, purchased services, and 
depreciation.  All other revenue and expenses of the 
College are reported as non-operating revenues and 
expenses including State general appropriations, federal 
Pell Grant revenues and investment income and 
interest expense. 

Net Position 
The College’s net position components are classified as 
follows: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets: This represents the 
College’s total investment in capital assets, less 
accumulated depreciation, and net of outstanding debt 
obligations related to capital assets. 

Restricted Net Position – Nonexpendable: This consists 
of endowment and similar type funds in which the 
donor or other outside sources have stipulated, as a 
condition of the gift, that the principal is to be 
maintained by inviolate and in perpetuity, and invested 
for the purpose of present and future income, which 
may be either expended, or added to principal. 

Restricted Net Position – Expendable: This consists of 
resources that the College is obligated to spend in 
accordance with restrictions imposed by external third 
parties. 

Unrestricted Net Position: This consists of net position 
which is not subject to externally imposed restrictions, 
but which may be designated for specific purposes by 
management or the Board of Trustees. 

Tax Exemption  
The College is a tax-exempt organization under the 
provisions of Section 115(a) of the Internal Revenue 
Code and is exempt from federal income taxes on 
related income.  The Foundation is exempt from income 
taxes under Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code. 

Violations 
The College does not have any material violations of 
finance-related legal or contractual provisions.   

Note 2. Valuation of Cash and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents include bank demand 
deposits, petty cash held at the College and unit shares 
in the Local Government Investment Pool administered 
by the Washington State Treasurer.  Except for petty 
cash held at the College, all others are covered by the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or by 
collateral held in a multiple financial institution 
collateral pool administered by the Washington Public 
Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC). 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 72 assets are 
valued at fair market value (FMV).  They consist of time 
certificates of deposit in addition to investments in 
equities, bond funds and fixed income bonds.   Time 
certificates of deposit have repurchase agreements with 
the respective financial institutions; investments in 
equities are subject to loss of all 100% of the balance of 
investments.  The statement provides a hierarchy of 
reporting between Levels 1 and 3 which are defined 
below: 

Investments classified as level 1. Investments classified 
as level 1 are exchange traded equity securities whose 
values are based on published market prices and 
quotations from national security exchanges as of the 
New York Stock Exchange close, as of each reporting 
period end.  

Investments classified as level 2. Investments classified 
as level 2 in the above table are primarily comprised of 
publicly traded debt securities and exchange traded 
stocks traded in inactive markets. Publicly traded debt 
securities are sourced from reputable pricing vendors 
using models that are market-based measurements 
representing their good faith opinion as to the exit 
value of a security, in an orderly transaction under 
current market conditions. Such models take into 
account quoted prices, nominal yield spreads, 
benchmark yield curves, prepayment speeds, and 
other market corroborated inputs. 

Investments classified as level 3. Private equity, real 
assets, and other investments classified in level 3 are 
valued using either discounted cash flow or market 
comparable techniques.  This category includes hedge 
funds, limited partnerships, and other alternative 
investments.  The college does not have any 
investments in this level. 

GASB Statement No. 40 requires certain disclosures of 
investments that have fair values that are highly 
sensitive to changes in interest rates.   
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As noted earlier, in the Summary of Significant 
Accounting Policies section, the College, through its 
investment policy, manages its exposure to custodial 
credit risk, credit risk, concentration of credit risk and 
interest rate risk by investing only in eligible 

investments authorized by State statute found 
in RCW 39 and 43. 

June 30,2019 
Cash on hand $             22,590 
Bank demand and time deposits 5,061,669 
Local government investment pool 24,913,864 
Total cash and cash equivalents  $     29,998,123 

Interest Rate Risk 
The College manages its exposure to interest rate changes by limiting the duration of investments and structuring the 
maturities of investments to mature at various points in the year.   

Concentration of Credit Risk 
The College’s Time Certificates of Deposit are insured through either the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or by 
collateral held in a multiple financial institution collateral pool administered by the PDPC.  The Endowment fund investment 
policy allows for the investments in equities of domestic publicly listed corporations on national exchanges. 

               Investment Maturities and Fair Market Value Reporting Level 

Investments Fair value Fair Value Measurement: 
Level Inputs 

Cash 
Equivalents 

Bond Funds  $        3,110,402   Level 2 
Equities -   
Totals  $        3,110,402  

At June 30, 2019 the net appreciation on investments of donor-restricted endowments that is available for expenditure 
authorization is $527,394 which is reported as restricted, expendable on the Statement of Net Position.  State law allows for 
spending of net appreciation on investments of donor-restricted endowments.  Accordingly, the income distribution policy is 
5% of the three year moving average value of the net assets. 

Note 3.  Funds Held with State Treasurer 

Funds held with the State Treasurer represent the College’s share of net earnings of the Normal School Permanent Fund as 
well as tuition distribution, reduced by expenditures for capital projects and debt service over the years in addition to 
monies held for the sale of College license plates.  The Normal School Permanent Fund, established under RCW 43.79.160 is 
a permanent endowment fund, which derives its corpus from the sale of State lands and timber.  The Washington State 
Investment Board manages the investing activities of the fund and the State Department of Natural Resources manages the 
sale of State lands and timber.  Interest earned from the investments is either reinvested or used exclusively for the benefits 
of Central Washington University, Eastern Washington University, The Evergreen State College and Western Washington 
University.  Funds held with the State Treasurer at June 30, 2019 totaled $2,477,565.  

Note 4.  Accounts and Student Loans Receivable 

Accounts receivable consists of tuition and fee charges to students and auxiliary enterprise services provided to students, 
faculty and staff. It also includes amounts due from the federal, state and local governments or private sources in 
connection with reimbursements of allowable expenditures made according to grants and contracts. 
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Accounts receivable at June 30 consisted of the following: 

2019 
Student tuition and fees  $             4,175,335  
Federal, state and private grants            2,631,345  
State appropriation receivable 341,798  
Auxiliary enterprises                1,441,489  
Other operating activities 451,294  

Subtotal           9,041,261  
 Allowance for uncollectable                 (397,788) 

Net accounts receivable   $            8,643,473  

Loans receivable at June 30 consisted primarily of student loan funds as follows: 

2019 
Perkins loans  $      2,758,721  
Other loans 19,981  

Subtotal 2,778,702  
 Allowance for uncollectable (3,628) 

Net student loans receivable  $           2,775,075  

Note 5.  Inventories  

Inventories at June 30 consist of the following: 

Inventories 2019 

Enterprise funds  $      117,469  
Working capital funds          847,391  

Total inventory  $      964,860  

Note 6.  Capital Assets 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 is summarized as follows: 

Balance Additions/ Retirements Balance 
June 30,2018 Transfers Transfers June 30,2019 

1701  Land   $   8,866,129   $ - $ - $        8,866,129
1750  Construction in progress            6,062,043  2,917,966            2,186,650             6,793,359  

      Total non-depreciable assets  $      14,928,172   $ 2,917,966            2,186,650           15,659,488  

1705 Infrastructure          13,765,378   -   -            13,765,379  
1702 Buildings        263,880,885  2,186,650         266,067,536  
1703 Improvements other than buildings            1,725,506   -   -              1,725,506  
1704 Furniture, fixtures and equipment          16,743,374  1,330,110           18,073,485  
1706 Library resources          20,876,188  305,877  - 21,182,065

      Total depreciable assets  $    316,991,333   $ 3,822,637   $ - $    320,813,971

1725 Infrastructure            9,877,455  385,407  - 10,262,862
1722 Buildings          99,174,806  6,296,354  - 105,471,160
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1723 Improvements other than buildings                264,539  59,518  - 324,056
1724 Furniture, fixtures and equipment          14,646,692  555,426 - 15,202,118 
1726 Library resources          18,455,294  336,999  - 18,792,294

        Total accumulated depreciation  $    142,418,785   $ 7,633,705   $ - $    150,052,490
Total  $    189,500,720   $ (893,102)  $       2,186,650   $    186,420,967  

Note 7.  Compensated Absences 
At termination of employment, employees may receive cash payments for all accumulated vacation and compensatory time.  
Employees who retire get 25% of the value of their accumulated sick leave credited to a Voluntary Employees’ Beneficiary 
Association (VEBA) account, which can be used for future medical expenses or insurance.  The amounts of unpaid vacation 
and compensatory time accumulated by College employees are accrued when incurred.  The sick leave liability is recorded 
as an actuarial estimate of one-fourth the total balance on the payroll records.  The changes in the accrued vacation and 
sick leave balances for the year ended June 30 are as follows: 

Compensated Absences 2019 

 Vacation Leave  2,160,565  

 Sick Leave           769,077  

 Total   $               2,929,642  

Note 8.  Non-Current Liabilities 

Following are changes in non-current liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2019: 

Balance Balance Current Long-Term 
June 30, 

2018 Additions Reductions 
June 30, 

2019 Portion Portion 

Accrued leave liabilities  $ 3,015,659   $   2,928,613   $   3,014,630  $2,929,642  $   2,160,565   $      769,077  

Certificate of Participation(Tacoma) 10,330,000 - 385,000 9,945,000  405,000 9,540,000  

Certificate of Participation(Housing) 135,185 - 42,882 92,303 45,026 47,277 

Certificate of Participation(CAB) 8,380,000  - 595,000 7,785,000  630,000 7,155,000  

Net pension liability (DRS) 12,686,905 - 3,542,998 9,143,907  - 9,143,907

Total pension liability (TIAA) 5,980,410  837,590 - 6,818,000 137,000   6,681,000

Total OPEB Liability 33,997,619 - 6,439,081 27,558,538 506,005 27,052,533

Housing Revenue Bonds payable 3,000,000  - 345,000 2,655,000 355,000 2,300,000

Total $77,525,778  $   3,766,203   $ 14,364,591   $66,927,390   $   4,238,596   $62,688,794  
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Note 9.  Bonds Payable 

In September of 2015, the College issued Housing Revenue Bonds, in the amount of $4,130,000, in an advance refunding 
with the proceeds of the issue being used to refund (pay off) the outstanding Housing Series 2006 Bonds.  The interest 
rate of the 2015 issue was 2.39% compared to the 2006 bond rates ranging from 3.75% to 4.25%.  This refunding enabled 
the College to save $320 thousand over the life of the bonds.  For the year ended June 30, 2019: 

Debt Service Requirements 

The scheduled maturities of system revenue bonds are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total 

2020  $            355,000   $        63,455   $                418,455  

2021 365,000               54,970  419,970  

2022 370,000               46,247  416,247  

2023 375,000               37,404  412,404  

2024 385,000               28,441  413,441  

2025-2026 805,000               28,919  833,919  

Total  $         2,655,000   $      259,436   $             2,914,436  

Note 10.  Notes Payable 

In December of 2016, the College issued Notes Payable, in the amount of $9,565,000, in an advance refunding with the 
proceeds of the issue being used to refund (pay off) the outstanding lease s376-10-1, which was originally issued in 2009 to 
fund the renovation of the Campus Activities Building. The interest rate of the 2016 issue was 1.91% versus the previous 
rate of 5.16%. This refunding enabled the College to save $1.294 million over the life of the lease. The College’s debt service 
requirements for this note agreement for the next five years and thereafter are as follows: 

Notes Payable Certificates of Participation (COP) CAB Building 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total 

2020 $              630,000                 $      310,838                 $      940,838  
2021 655,000                  279,338                 934,338  
2022 690,000                  246,588                 936,588  
2023 725,000                  212,088                 937,088  
2024 760,000                  175,838                 935,838  

2025-2029               4,325,000                  351,087              4,676,087  
Total  $           7,785,000   $   1,575,775  $  9,360,775 

In March of 2016, the College obtained financing to cover the cost to purchase property in downtown Tacoma for a 
permanent home for the Tacoma Program through a certificates of participation (COP), issued by the Washington Office of 
State Treasurer in the amount of $10,955,000.  The funding source for the repayment is the general operating funds.  The 
interest rate charged is approximately 3%. The term of the COP is 20 years with payments due June 1 and December 1 
annually.  The College’s first payment was December 1, 2016.  The College’s debt service requirements for this note 
agreement for the next five years and thereafter are as follows:  
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Notes Payable Certificates of Participation (COP) Tacoma Campus 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total 

2020 $              405,000 $             382,825 $            787,825 

2021 425,000 362,575 787,575 

2022 445,000 341,325 786,325 

2023 470,000                  319,075                 789,075  

2024 490,000                  295,575                 785,575  

2025-2036               7,710,000               1,739,363              9,449,363  

Total  $           9,945,000   $          3,440,738   $      13,385,738  

In March of 2016, the College obtained financing to cover the cost to an industrial conveyer type energy star dishwasher 
through certificates of participation (COP), issued by the Washington Office of State Treasurer in the amount of $214,107.  
The interest rate charged is approximately 1.3%.  The term of the COP is 5 years with payments due June 1 and December 1 
annually.  The College’s first payment was December 1, 2016.  The College’s debt service requirements for this note 
agreement for the next two years and thereafter are as follows: 

    Notes Payable Certificates of Participation (COP) Industrial Dishwasher 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total 
2020  $                45,026   $ 4,615   $              49,641  
2021 47,277  2,364  49,641  
Total  $                92,303   $                 6,979   $              99,282  

Note 11.  Commitments  

Encumbrances for current funds carried forward totaled $112,444 at June 30, 2019.   

Note 12.  Operating Expenses by Function 

Operating expenses by functional classification for the year end June 30, 2019 are as follows: 

2019 

Instruction       31,923,869  

Scholarship and aid       13,366,013  

Auxiliary enterprises       12,362,965  

Institutional support         9,134,409  

Operations and maintenance       11,813,623  

Depreciation         7,636,751  

Academic support         6,930,173  

Student services         7,256,708  

Public service         3,273,127  

Research             14,702  

Total operating expenses  $ 103,712,340 
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Note 13.  Contingencies and Risk Management 

Amounts received and expended by the College under various federal and state programs are subject to audit by 
governmental agencies.  In the opinion of management, audit adjustments, if any, will not have a significant effect on the 
financial position of the College. 

The College is a party to various litigations and other claims in the ordinary course of business.  Starting FY19 the College has 
settlements of $125,000 for the next four years, of which the College’s portion is $60,000 each year. In the opinion of 
management, the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a significant effect on the financial position of the College.   

The College participates in the State of Washington risk management self-insurance program.  Premiums are based on 
actuarially determined projections and include allowances for payments of both outstanding and current liabilities.  The 
College assumes its potential liability and property losses for all properties except for Housing, which were acquired with 
proceeds of bond issues where the bond agreement requires the College to carry insurance on Housing property. 

In accordance with State policy, the College self-insures unemployment compensation for all employees.  The College 
maintains an unemployment reserve, funded by charging all labor and wage expenditures, except for work-study, a 
percentage in order to fund the reserve to pay unemployment claims.   The rate charged in FY 2019 was 0.5%.    
Unemployment compensation claims paid by the College during FY 2019 were $176,401.  At the end of FY 2019, the reserve 
balance was $176,148.  

Note 14.  Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) 

PLAN DESCRIPTION:  

The Washington State Health Care Authority (HCA) administers this single employer defined benefit other postemployment 
benefit (OPEB) plan. The HCA calculates the premium amounts each year that are sufficient to fund the State-wide health 
and life insurance programs on a pay-as-you-go basis. These costs are passed through to individual state agencies based 
upon active employee headcount; the agencies pay the premiums for active employees to the HCA. The agencies may also 
charge employees for certain higher cost options elected by the employees.  

State of Washington retirees may elect coverage through state health and life insurance plans, for which they pay less than 
the full cost of the benefits, based on their age and other demographic factors.  

The health care premiums for active employees, which are paid by the agency during employees’ working careers, subsidize 
the “underpayments” of the retirees. An additional factor in the OPEB obligation is a payment that is required by the State 
Legislature to reduce the premiums for retirees covered by Medicare (an “explicit subsidy”). For calendar years 2019 and 
2018, this amount is $168 and $150 respectively for retirees who are enrolled in parts A and B of Medicare, per member per 
month. This is also passed through to State agencies via active employees rates charged to the agency. 

OPEB implicit and explicit subsidies as well as administrative costs are funded by required contributions made by 
participating employers. State agency contributions are made on behalf of all active, health care eligible employees, regardless 
of enrollment status. Based on the funding practice, the allocation method used to determine proportionate share is each  
agency’s percentage of the state’s total active, health care eligible employee headcount. As of June 2018, the total College’s 
headcount of active member is 673. 

There is no formal State or College plan that underlies the subsidy of retiree health and life insurance. An actuarial study 
performed by the Washington Office of the State Actuary (OSA) calculated the total OPEB actuarial accrued liability of the 
State of Washington as of June 30, 2018. 
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ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS: 

Accounting requirements dictate the use of assumptions to best estimate the impact the pension obligations will have on 
the University’s auxiliary units. The professional judgments used in determining these assumptions are important, and can 
significantly impact the resulting actuarial estimates. Difference between actual results compared to these assumptions could 
have a significant effect on Residential Services’ financial statements. The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of January 1, 2018, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement period:  

• Inflation: 2.75%
• Salary Increases: 3.50% including service-based salary increases
• Health Care Trend Rates: Initial rate of 8.00% adjusting to 4.50% in 2080
• Post-retirement Participation: 65.00%
• Spouse Coverage: 45.00%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Table and Combined Disabled Table published by the Society 
of Actuaries. The Office of the State Actuary applied offsets to the base table and recognized future improvements in 
mortality by projecting the mortality rates using 100.0% Scale BB. Mortality rates are applied on a generational basis, 
meaning members are assumed to receive additional mortality improvements in each future year, throughout their lifetime. 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was set equal to the Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond 
Municipal Bond Index. A discount rate of 3.58% was used for the June 30, 2017 measurement date and 3.87% for the 
June 30, 2018 measurement date.  

The following presents proportional share of the total College OPEB liability, calculated using the discount rate of 3.87%, as 
well as what the total pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower 
(2.87% or 1 percentage point higher (4.87%) than the current rate. 

Total OPEB Liability 
Discount Rate Sensitivity 

1% Decrease $33,229,119 

Current Discount Rate - 3.87%             $27,558,539  

1% Increase $23,134,259 

The following represents the total OPEB liability of the College calculated using the health care trend rates of 8.00% 
decreasing to 4.50%, as well as what the total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using health care trend rates that 
are 1 percentage point lower (7.00% decreasing to 3.50%) or 1 percentage point higher (9.00% decreasing to 5.50%) than the 
current rate: 

Total OPEB Liability 
Health Care Cost 

 Trend Rate Sensitivity 

1% Decrease $22,622,890 

Current Discount Rate - 8.00%            $27,558,539  

1% Increase $34,122,016 
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TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY: 

As of June 30, 2019, components of the proportionate share calculation of total OPEB liability determined in accordance with 
GASB Statement No. 75 for the College are represented in the following table: 

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability 

Total OPEB Liability 2019 

Service cost $           1,723,003 
Interest 1,184,555  
Changes of benefit terms  -  
Differences between expected & actual experience 1,081,268                        
Changes in assumptions (7,543,053) 
Benefit payments (500,297) 
Change in Proportionate share (2,384,556)  

Other  -  
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability (6,439,080) 

Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 33,997,619 

Total OPEB Liability - Ending $       27,558,539 

The College’s proportionate share of OPEB expense for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 was $1,354,675. 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:  

The tables below summarize college’s deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB, together with the related 
future year impacts to expense from amortization of those deferred amounts: 

Deferred Outflows of Resources  

2019 

Change in proportion  $ 45,042  

Difference between expected and actual experience 961,127  

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 506,005*  

    TOTAL $                 1,512,174 

*Will be recognized as reduction of the total OPEB liability in FY20.

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

2019       

Changes of assumptions  $               (10,513,652)  

Changes in Proportion (2,377,910)  

    TOTAL  $               (12,891,562) 
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Amortization of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Year 

2020  $               (1,552,882) 

2021 (1,552,882) 

2022 (1,552,882) 

2023 (1,552,882) 

2024 (1,552,882) 

Thereafter (4,120,983) 

     TOTAL $            (11,885,393) 

Note 15.  Deferred Compensation 

The College, through the State of Washington, offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created under Internal 
Revenue Code § 457.  The plan, available to all State employees, permits individuals to defer a portion of their salary until 
future years.   

The State administers the plan on behalf of the College’s employees.  The deferred compensation is not available to 
employees until termination, retirement or unforeseeable financial emergency. 

Note 16.  Retirement Plans 

The College offers three contributory pension plans, which cover eligible faculty, staff and administrative employees:  The 
Washington State Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS), includes PERS 1 and PERS 2/3, the Teachers Retirement 
System (TRS), includes TRS 1 and TRS 2/3,  and the Law Enforcement Officers’ and Firefighters’ Retirement System (LEOFF 2). 
They are multiple-employer, defined benefit, public retirement systems administered by the State of Washington, 
Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), as established in the Revised Code of Washington (RCW) chapter 41.50.  

For 2019, the payroll for the College’s employees was $16,232,770 for PERS, $822,232 for TRS, $745,186 for LEOFF and 
$22,796,919 for TESCRP.  Total covered payroll for 2019 was $46,800,300. 

The College implemented Statement No. 68 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) “Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pensions” for fiscal year 2015 financial reporting.  TESC’s defined benefit pension plans were created 
by statutes. With the exception of the supplemental component of the TESCRP plan, they are administered in a way 
equivalent to pension trusts as defined by the GASB. 

In accordance with Statement No. 68, TESC has elected to use the prior fiscal year end as the measurement date for reporting 
net pension liabilities. 

Basis of Accounting 
Pension plans administered by the State are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, employee and employer contributions are recognized in the period in which employee services are performed; 
investment gains and losses are recognized as incurred; and benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the terms of the applicable plan. 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources  related 
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net positions of all plans and additions to/deductions 
from all plan fiduciary net positions have been determined in all material respects on the same basis as they are reported by 
the plans. 
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Investments 
The Washington State Investment Board (WSIB) has been authorized by statute as having investment management 
responsibility for the pension funds. The WSIB manages retirement fund assets to maximize return at a prudent level of risk. 

Retirement funds are invested in the Commingled Trust Fund (CTF). Established on July 1, 1992, the CTF is a diversified pool 
of investments that invests in fixed income, public equity, private equity, real estate, and tangible assets. Investment 
decisions are made within the framework of a Strategic Asset Allocation Policy and a series of written WSIB-adopted 
investment policies for the various asset classes in which the WSIB invests. 

Department of Retirement Systems 
As established in chapter 41.50 of the Revised Code of Washington (RCW), the Department of Retirement Systems (DRS) 
administers eight retirement systems covering eligible employees of the state and local governments. The Governor appoints 
the director of the DRS.  The DRS administered systems that TESC offers its employees are comprised of five defined benefit 
pension plans and two defined benefit/defined contribution plans. Below are the DRS defined benefit plans that TESC offers 
its employees: 

• Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) Plans 1 & 2/3
• Teacher’s Retirement System (TRS) Plans 1 & 2
• Law Enforcement Officers and Fire Fighters’ Plan 2

Below are the DRS defined benefit/defined contribution plans that TESC offers its employees: 
• Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) Plans 2/3
• Teacher’s Retirement System (TRS) Plan 3

Although some assets of the plans are commingled for investment purposes, each plan’s assets may be used only for the 
payment of benefits to the members of that plan in accordance with the terms of the plan.  

Administration of the PERS, TRS and LEOFF systems and plans was funded by an employer rate of 0.18 % of employee 
salaries. 

The DRS prepares a stand-alone financial report that is compliant with the requirements of Statement 67 of the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  Copies of the report may be obtained by contacting the Washington State 
Department of Retirement Systems, PO Box 48380, Olympia, Washington 98504-8380 or online at 
htttp://www.drs.wa.gov/administration/annual-report/. 

Higher Education  
As established in chapter 28B.10 RCW, eligible higher education State employees may participate in higher education 
retirement plans. These plans include a defined contribution plan administered by a third party with a supplemental 
defined benefit component (on a pay as you go basis) which is administered by the State. 

A. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

As established by chapter 41.34 RCW, employee contribution rates to the defined contribution component range from 5 to 
15% of salaries, on member choice. Members who do not choose a contribution rate default to a 5% rate. There are currently 
no requirements for employer contributions to the defined contribution component of PERS Plan 3.   

The PERS defined benefit plan benefits are vested after an employee completes five years of eligible service.  PERS Plan 3 
defined contribution retirement benefits are dependent upon the results of investment activities.   Members may elect to self-
direct the investment of their contributions. Any expenses incurred in conjunction with self-directed investments are paid by 
members. 

Absent a member’s self-direction, PERS Plan 3 contributions are invested in the retirement strategy fund that assumes the 
member will retire at age 65. 
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Members in PERS Plan 3 are immediately vested in the defined contribution portion of their plan, and can elect to withdraw 
total employee contributions adjusted by earnings and losses from investments of those contributions upon separation from 
PERS-covered employment.  

Funding Policy 
Each biennium, the Office of the State Actuary, using funding methods prescribed by statute, determine the actuarially 
required contribution rates for PERS and LEOFF plans, except where employee contribution rates are set by statute.  All 
employers are required to contribute at the level established by State law.  All required employee and employer 
contributions have been made to the above plans.   The contribution rates may be found in Table B2. 

PLAN DESCRIPTION: 

The Evergreen State College Retirement Plan 
The plan is a defined contribution plan administered by the College and covers most faculty and exempt staff.  Contributions 
to the plan are invested in annuity contracts or mutual fund accounts offered by the Teachers Insurance and Annuity 
Association and College Retirement Equities Fund (TIAA-CREF).  Benefits from fund sponsors are available upon separation or 
retirement at the member’s option.  Employees have, at all times, a 100% vested interest in their accumulations. 

Employee contribution rates, which are based on age, range from 5% to 10%.  The College matches the employee 
contributions.  Employer and employee contributions for the year ended June 30, 2019 was $3,945,087.  All required 
employee and employer contributions have been made. 

The benefit goal is 2% of the average annual salary for each year of full-time service up to a maximum of 25 years.  However, 
if the participant does not elect to make the 10% contribution after age 50, the benefit goal is 1.5% for each year of full-time 
service for the years in which the lower contribution was selected.  No significant changes were made in the faculty benefit 
provisions for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

The plan has a supplemental payment plan component which guarantees a minimum retirement benefit based upon a one-
time calculation at each employee’s retirement date.  The College makes direct payments to qualifying retirees when the 
retirement benefits provided by the fund sponsors do not meet the benefit goals.  The supplemental component of TESCRP 
is financed on a pay as you go basis.  Effective for new employees hired on or after July 1, 2011, State law no longer offers this 
supplemental component benefit of TESCRP. 

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS: 

Accounting requirements dictate the use of assumptions to best estimate the impact the pension obligations will have on 
the College’s auxiliary units.  The professional judgments used in determining these assumptions are important, and can 
significantly impact the resulting actuarial estimates.   Difference between actual results compared to these assumptions 
could have a significant effect on Residential Services’ financial statements.  

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, measurement date using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:   

• Inflation: 2.75%
• Salary Increases:  3.50%
• Discount Rate: 3.50%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Table and Combined Disabled Table published by the Society 
of Actuaries. The Office of the State Actuary applied offsets to the base table and recognized future improvements in 
mortality by projecting the mortality rates using 100 percent Scale BB. Mortality rates are applied on a generational basis, 
meaning members are assumed to receive additional mortality improvements in each future year, throughout their lifetime.  
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The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017, valuation were based on the results of the April 2017 Experience Study 
Report.   

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was set equal to the Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond 
Municipal Bond Index.  

The following presents College’s proportional share of the pension liability for the TESCRP for TESC as an employer, calculated 
using the discount rate of 3.50%, as well as what the total pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 
that is 1.0% point lower (2.50%) or 1.0% point higher (4.50%) than the current rate.

Total Pension Liability - Interest Rate Sensitivity 

 1% Decrease 2.50%  Current Discount Rate 3.50%  1% Increase 4.50% 

$7,743,000 $6,818,000 $6,045,000 

Material assumption changes during the measurement period included first, updating the GASB Statement No. 73 discount 
rate from 3.87% to 3.50% (increased the TPL), and secondly, updating the two variable income investment return 
assumptions used in the “assumed income” calculation from 6.25% to 12.32% for the CREF component and from 4.25% to 
4.23% for the TIAA component (decreased the TPL). 

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY (TPL): 

Assets set aside to pay TESCRP benefits are not held in a qualified trust as defined by GASB.  A qualified trust requires that 
contributions from employers be irrevocable, dedicated to providing pension benefits to plan members, and are legally 
protected from creditors of the employer and plan administrator.  As a result, Housing & Dining reports the total TESCRP 
pension liability.  This is different from the DRS plans (PERS, TRS, and LEOFF2), which have trusted assets and, therefore, 
are reported as a net pension liability. 

Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liability 
THE EVERGREEN STATE COLLEGE 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2019 

Total Pension Liability - Beginning  $         5,980,000 
Service Cost                154,000  
Interest                235,000  
Changes of benefit terms -  
Difference between expected and actual expense (1)              (107,000) 
Changes of assumptions              694,000 
Benefit Payments              (137,000) 
Other -  

Net Change in Total Pension Liability  $         838,000 

Total Pension Liability - Ending  $         6,818,000 

TESC Covered-employee Payroll (2)  $       14,999,000  
Total Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll 45.46% 

The College’s TESCRP pension expense for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 was $102,321.  

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:  

The tables below summarize deferred inflows of resources related to the TESCRP, together with the related future year 
impacts to pension expense from amortization of those deferred amounts: 
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Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Change in assumptions  $          585,000  

Total  $          585,000  

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Difference between expected and actual experience  $(1,203,000)  
Change in assumptions        (371,000)  
Total  $(1,575,000)  

Amortization of Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources 
Year 

2019  $                (286,000) 
2020 (286,000) 
2021 (286,000) 
2022 (126,000) 
2023 (19,000) 
Thereafter 15,000  
       Total  $                (988,000) 

B. STATE PARTICIPATION IN PLANS ADMINISTERED BY DRS

PLAN DESCRIPTION: 

Public Employees’ Retirement System 
PERS retirement benefit provisions are contained in chapters 41.34 and 41.40 of the Revised Code of 
Washington (RCW). PERS is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer retirement system comprised of three separate plans for 
membership purposes: Plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans and Plan 3 is a combination defined benefit/defined contribution 
plan. Although members can only be a member of either Plan 2 or Plan 3, the defined benefit portions of Plan 2 and Plan 3 are 
accounted for in the same pension trust fund. All assets of this Plan 2/3 defined benefit plan may legally be used to pay the 
defined benefits of any of the Plan 2 or Plan 3 members or beneficiaries, as defined by the terms of the plan. Therefore, Plan 2/3 
is considered a single defined benefit plan for reporting purposes. Plan 3 accounts for the defined contribution portion of benefits 
for Plan 3 members. PERS members include higher education employees not participating in other higher education retirement 
programs.  

Teachers’ Retirement System 
TRS retirement benefit provisions are contained in chapters 41.32 and 41.34 of the Revised Code of Washington (RCW). TRS is a 
cost-sharing, multiple-employer retirement system comprised of three separate plans for membership purposes: Plans 1 and 2 
are defined benefit plans and Plan 3 is a combination defined benefit/defined contribution plan. Although members can only be a 
member of either Plan 2 or Plan 3, the defined benefit portions of Plan 2 and Plan 3 are accounted for in the same pension trust 
fund. All assets of this Plan 2/3 defined benefit plan may legally be used to pay the defined benefits of any of the Plan 2 or Plan 3 
members. TRS eligibility for membership requires service as a certificated public school employee working in an instructional, 
administrative or supervisory capacity. 

Law Enforcement Officers’ and Fire Fighters’ Retirement System 
LEOFF retirement benefit provisions are contained in chapter 41.26 of the Revised Code of Washington (RCW). LEOFF is a cost-
sharing, multiple-employer retirement system comprised of two separate pension plans for membership and accounting 
purposes. TESC participates in LEOFF Plan 2, which is a defined-benefit plan. LEOFF membership includes full-time, fully 
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compensated, local law enforcement commissioned officers, firefighters, and as of July 24, 2005, emergency medical technicians. 

VESTING AND BENEFITS PROVIDED: 

PERS Plan 1 and TRS Plan 1 
PERS Plan 1 and TRS Plan 1 provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to eligible members. This plan is closed to new 
entrants. All members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service. The monthly benefit is 2.0% of the average 
final compensation (AFC) for each year of service credit, up to a maximum of 60.0%. The AFC is the total earnable compensation 
for the two consecutive highest-paid fiscal years, divided by two. 

Members are eligible for retirement at any age after 30 years of service, or at the age of 60 with five years of service, or at 
the age of 55 with 25 years of service. Members may elect to receive an optional cost of living allowance (COLA) amount 
based on the Consumer Price Index, capped at 3 percent annually. To offset the cost of this annual adjustment, the benefit 
is reduced. Other benefits include duty and nonduty disability payments and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if the 
member is found eligible by the Washington State Department of Labor and Industries. 

PERS Plan 2/3 and TRS Plan 2/3 
PERS 2/3 and TRS Plan 2/3 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. PERS Plan 2 and TRS Plan 2 members are vested 
after completing five years of eligible service. PERS Plan 3 members are vested in the defined benefit portion of their plan after 10 
years of service; or after five years of service, if 12 months of that service are earned after age 44. Plan 3 members are 
immediately vested in the defined contribution portion of their plan. 

Defined Retirement benefits are determined as 2.0% of the member’s AFC times the member’s years of service for Plan 2 
and 1.0% of the AFC times the member’s years of service for Plan 3. The AFC is the average of the member’s 60 highest paid 
consecutive months. There is no cap on years of service credit. 

Members are eligible for normal retirement at the age of 65 with five years of service. Members have the option to retire 
early with reduced benefits. Members may elect to receive an optional cost of living allowance 
(COLA) amount based on the Consumer Price Index, capped at 3 percent annually. Other benefits include duty and nonduty 
disability payments and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if the member is found eligible by the Washington State 
Department of Labor and Industries. 

LEOFF Plan 2  
LEOFF Plan 2 provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to eligible members. Members are vested after the 
completion of five years of eligible service. Plan 2 members receive a benefit of 2 percent of the FAS per year of service. FAS 
is based on the highest consecutive 60 months.  

Members are eligible for retirement at the age of 53 with five years of service, or at age 50 with 20 years of service. 
Members who retire prior to the age of 53 receive reduced benefits. A cost of living allowance (COLA) is granted based on 
the Consumer Price Index, capped at 3.0% annually. Other benefits include duty and nonduty disability payments and a one-
time duty-related death benefit, if the member is found eligible by the Washington State Department of Labor and 
Industries. 

FIDUCIARY NET POSITION: 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of all plans and additions 
to/deductions from all plans fiduciary net position have been determined in all material respects on the same basis as they 
are reported by the plans. These pension plans administered by the state are accounted for using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, employee and employer contributions are recognized in the period in 
which employee services are performed; investment gains and losses are recognized as incurred; and benefits and refunds 
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the applicable plan. 

The Washington State Investment Board (WSIB) has been authorized by statute as having investment management 
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responsibility for the pension funds. The WSIB manages retirement fund assets to maximize return at a prudent level of risk. 

Retirement funds are invested in the Commingled Trust Fund (CTF). Established on July 1, 1992, the CTF is a diversified pool 
of investments that invests in fixed income, public equity, private equity, real estate, and tangible assets. Investment decisions 
are made within the framework of a Strategic Asset Allocation Policy and a series of written WSIB- adopted investment policies 
for the various asset classes in which the WSIB invests. 

Although some assets of the plans are commingled for investment purposes, each plan’s assets may be used only for the 
payment of benefits to the members of that plan in accordance with the terms of the plan. 

Administration of the PERS system and plan was funded by an employer rate of 0.18% of employee salaries. 

The DRS prepares a stand-alone financial report that is compliant with the requirements of Statement 67 of the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board. Copies of the report may be obtained by contacting the Washington State Department of 
Retirement Systems, PO Box 48380, Olympia, Washington 98504-8380 or online at http://www.drs.wa.gov/ administration/
annual-report/. 

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS: 

The total pension liability for each of the plans was determined using the most recent actuarial valuation completed by the 
Washington State Office of the State Actuary (OSA). TESC’s 2019 pension liability is based on the OSA valuation performed as of 
June 30, 2017, with the results rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2018. Besides the discount rate, the actuarial 
assumptions used in the valuation are summarized in the Actuarial Section of DRS’ Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
located on the DRS employer-resource GASB webpage. These assumptions reflect the results of OSA’s 2007-2012 Experience 
Study and the 2017 Economic Experience Study. The following actuarial assumptions have been applied to all prior periods 
included in the measurement: 
• Inflation: 2.75% total economic inflation; 3.50% salary inflation
• Salary Increases: salaries are also expected to grow by promotions and longevity.
• Investment rate of return: 7.40%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Table and Combined Disabled Table published by the Society of 
Actuaries. The Office of the State Actuary applied offsets to the base table and recognized future improvements in mortality by 
projecting the mortality rates using 100 percent Scale BB. Mortality rates are applied on a generational basis, meaning members 
are assumed to receive additional mortality improvements in each future year, throughout their lifetime. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of the 2007-2012 Experience Studies. 
Additional assumptions for subsequent events and law changes are current as of the 2017 actuarial valuation report. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which a 
best estimate of expected future rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, but including 
inflation) are developed for each major as- set class by the WSIB.  Those expected returns make up one component of WSIB’s 
Capital Market Assumptions (CMAs). The CMAs contain the following three pieces of information for each class of assets the WSIB 
currently invests in: 

• Expected annual return.
• Standard deviation of the annual return.
• Correlations between the annual returns of each asset class with every other asset class.

WSIB uses the CMAs and their target asset allocation to simulate future investment returns at various future times. 

The best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset 
allocation as of June 30, 2018, are summarized in the following table: 

http://www.drs.wa.gov/%20administration/annual-report/
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Asset Class Target 
Allocation 

Long Term Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

Fixed Income 20.00% 1.70% 
Tangible Assets 7.00% 4.90% 
Real Estate 18.00% 5.80% 
Global Equity 32.00% 6.30% 
Private Equity 23.00% 9.30% 
Total 100.00% 

The inflation component used to create the above table is 2.20 percent, and represents WSIB’s most recent long- term estimate 
of broad economic inflation. 

There were no material changes in assumptions, benefit terms or method changes for the reporting period. 

DISCOUNT RATE: 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.40 percent, the same as the prior measurement date. To 
determine the discount rate, an asset sufficiency test was completed to test whether the pension plan’s fiduciary net position 
was sufficient to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Consistent with current law, the completed 
asset sufficiency test included an assumed 7.50 percent long-term discount rate to determine funding liabilities for calculating 
future contribution rate requirements. (All plans use 7.50 percent except LEOFF Plan 2, which has assumed 7.40 percent.)  

Consistent with the long-term expected rate of return, a 7.40 percent future investment rate of return on invested assets was 
assumed for the test. Contributions from plan members and employers are assumed to continue to be made at contractually 
required rates (including PERS Plan 2/3 employers whose rates include a component for the PERS Plan 1 liability). Based on those 
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit 
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return of 7.40 percent on pension plan investments 
was applied to determine the total pension liability. 

SENSITIVITY OF THE NET PENSION LIABIILTY TO CHANGES IN THE DISCOUNT RATE: 

The following presents the net pension liability/asset of TESC as an employer, calculated using the discount rate of 7.40 percent, 
as well as what the net pension liability/asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower 
(6.40 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (8.40 percent) than the current rate. 

2019 

Plan 
1% Decrease 

6.40% 
Current Discount 

Rate 7.40% 
1% Increase 

8.40% 

PERS 1  $            7,359,938   $ 5,988,862   $          4,801,234  

PERS 2/3 12,540,565 2,741,692  (5,292,290) 

TRS 1 446,594 357,305 280,007 

TRS 2/3 361,785 56,048 (182,201) 

LEOFF 2 (85,611) (643,782) (1,099,036) 

EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION RATES: 

Employer contribution rates are developed in accordance with Chapter 41.45 of the RCW by the OSA. The statute 
provides authority to the Pension Funding Council to adopt changes to economic assumptions and contribution rates. 
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Required Contribution Rates 
The required contribution rates (expressed as a percentage of current year covered payroll) at June 30, 2018 are as 
follows: 

Required Contribution Rates 
College Employee 

PERS 
Plan 1 7.49% 6.00% 
Plan 2 7.49% 7.38% 
Plan 3 7.49% * 5.00-15.00% ** 

TRS 
Plan 1 7.83% 6.00% 
Plan 2 7.83% 7.06% 
Plan 3 7.83% * 5.00-15.00% ** 

LEOFF 
Plan 2 8.75% 8.75% 

PERS 2/3 employer rates include a component to address the PERS Plan 1 unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 

TRS 2/3 employer rates include a component to address the TRS Plan 1 unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 

*Plan 3 defined benefit portion only. 

**Variable from 5% to 15% based on rate selected by the member 

College contribution rate includes an administrative expense rate of 0.0018. 

REQUIRED CONTRIBUTIONS: 

The required contributions for the years ending June 30, 2019 as follows: 

2019 
 PERS  

 Employee  $          1,147,672 
 College $          2,079,377 

 TRS 
 Employee  $               54,266 

 College $             126,551 
 LEOFF  

 Employee  $               65,204 
 College $               66,545 

COLLEGE PROPORTIONATE SHARE AND AGGREGATED BALANCES: 

Collective pension amounts are determined as of a measurement date, which can be no earlier than an employer’s prior 
fiscal year. The measurement date for the net pension liabilities recorded by TESC as of June 30, 2019 was June 30, 2018 
(one year in arrears.) Employer contributions received and processed by the DRS during the measurement date fiscal 
year have been used as the basis for determining each employer’s proportionate share of the collective pension 
amounts reported by the DRS in their fiscal year ended June 30 Schedules of Employer and Non-employer Allocations. 
TESC’s proportionate share of the aggregated balance of net pension liabilities and net pension asset as of June 30, 2018 
is presented in the table below. 

Proportionate Share Allocation Percentage 

PERS 1 PERS 2/3 TRS 1 TRS 2/3 LEOFF 2 

FY19 Proportionate Share 0.1341% 0.1606% 0.0122% 0.0125% 0.0317% 
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    Aggregate Pension Balances 
PERS 1 PERS 2/3 TRS 1 TRS 2/3 LEOFF 2 Total 

June 30, 2019 
Net Pension Liability  $    5,988,862   $    2,741,692   $    357,305  $     56,048  $9,143,907  
Net Pension Asset  $    643,782  $    643,782 

PENSION EXPENSE, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 
Proportionate Share of Pension Expense 

PERS 1 PERS 2/3 TRS 1 TRS 2/3 LEOFF 2 Total 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 $391,270   $    (166,574)  $   154,476   $     40,874  $  (62,913)  $   357,133 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources, exclusive of contributions subsequent to the measurement date, 
and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in pension expense in future periods as follows: 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
PERS 1 PERS 2/3 TRS 1 TRS 2/3 LEOFF 2 Total 

2019 

Difference between expected 
and actual experience 

 $       336,060   $     26,339  $      34,486   $    396,885 

Changes of assumptions 32,073 953 364 33,390 
Net Difference between 
projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments -   

Change in proportion 80,154 48,672 16,785 145,611 
Contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 866,152 1,213,225  60,608 65,944 66,545 2,272,474  
Total  $     866,152   $    1,661,512   $      60,608   $   141,908  $    118,180  $2,848,360  

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
PERS 1 PERS 2/3 TRS 1 TRS 2/3 LEOFF 2 Total 

2019 
Difference between expected 
and actual experience  $       480,020   $        4,139   $      14,949   $    499,108 

Changes of assumptions 780,263 22,524 92,394 895,181 
Net Difference between 
projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments 237,994 1,682,429  15,280 47,402 112,671 2,095,776  

Change in proportion 235,270 7,175 45,777 288,222 
Total  $       237,994   $    3,177,982   $      15,280   $     81,240  $    265,791  $3,778,287  
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Amortization of Deferred Out flows and Deferred inflows of Resources 

PERS 1 PERS 2/3 TRS 1 TRS 2/3 LEOFF 2 Total 

YEAR 

2019  $ 10,412  $         (291,575)  $ 1,529  $    10,560  $  (18,311)  $ (287,385) 

2020    (52,027)                 (576,775)    (3,163)        (4,200)      (35,041)     (671,206) 

2021  (156,118)              (1,050,127)  (10,866)    (21,718)     (70,332) (1,309,161) 

2022    (40,261)                 (401,668)     (2,780)       (3,528)      (28,354)     (476,592) 

2023                 (161,473)         3,143       (12,381)     (170,711) 

Thereafter                 (248,077)        10,468       (49,737)     (287,345) 

Total $(237,994)  $        (2,729,695) $(15,280)  $   (5,275) $(214,156) $(3,202,400 

Note 17.  Pledged Revenues 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement No. 48, Sales and Pledges of Receivables and 
Future Revenues and Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets and Future Revenues.   The College has pledged specific revenues, net of 
operating expenses, to repay principal and interest of revenue bonds.  The following is a schedule of the pledged revenue 
and related debt: 

Source of Revenue 
Pledged 

Current Year 
Revenues 

Pledged (net) 

Current Year 
Debt Service 

Total Future 
Revenues 
Pledged 

Description 
of Debt 

Purpose of 
Debt 

Term of 
Commitment 

Student housing rentals  $     2,494,780   $      416,700   $  2,914,435  
2015 

Housing 
Bond 

Refunding 
of 2006 

Bond Issue 
2026 

Note 18.  Segment Information 

The College operates residence halls “Residential Services” located on the College campus.  Revenue bonds are issued from 
time to time to build or remodel facilities.  Residential Services pledges net revenues to cover the costs of debt service for the 
bonds, therefore, for accounting purposes, the Residential Services is a segment of the College.   Presented below are 
condensed financial statements for Residential Services as audited by The State Auditor’s Office (SAO) as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2019: 

Condensed Statement of Net Positions 

Assets 

        Current assets $      8,037,745 

       Non-current assets 11,035,121 

Total Assets 19,072,866 

Deferred Outflows 104,003 

Liabilities 

       Current liabilities 731,818 

      Non-current liabilities 3,054,866 

Total Liabilities 3,786,684 

Deferred Inflows 303,401 

Net Position 

        Net Investment in Capital Assets 8,400,682 

       Unrestricted 6,686,102 

Net position  $   15,086,784  
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Note 19.  Subsequent Events 

In February 2020, the Governor of the State of Washington declared a state of emergency in response to the spread of a 
deadly new virus. In the weeks following the declaration, precautionary measures to slow the spread of the virus have been 
ordered. These measures include closing schools, colleges and universities, cancelling public events, and limiting gathering 
sizes. 

The college’s Planning and Response COVID 19 team meets daily and provides daily updates to Senior Management and to 
the campus.  To do our part to slow the spread of the virus, all classes for spring quarter have been moved to online 
instruction and most employees are working remotely.  It is too early to know the financial impact the virus may have on the 
college but we are formulating plans to monitor potential and actual lost revenues. The length of time these measures will be 
in place, and the full extent of the financial impact on the college is unknown at this time. 

Condensed Statement of Revenues, 

Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

Operating revenues  $     5,070,005 

Operating expenses 3,537,110 

        Net operating income 1,532,895 

Non-operating revenues (expenses) 66,216 

Changes in net position 1,599,111 

Net Position 

Net position, beginning 13,487,673 

     Net position, end of year  $   15,086,784  

Condensed Statement of Cash Flow 

Net cash flows provided by operating activities   $     2,261,730 

Net cash flows used by capital financing activities (417,880) 

Net cash flows provided by investing activities             139,096  

Net increase to cash 1,982,946 

Cash beginning of year 5,837,053 

Cash end of year  $     7,819,999 
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NOTE 1 – NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT  
 ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Activities 

The Evergreen State College Foundation (Foundation) is a not-for-profit corporation organized under the laws 
of the State of Washington for the charitable and the educational benefit of The Evergreen State College 
(College).  The Foundation was organized to function exclusively for the purposes of promoting, supporting, 
maintaining, developing, increasing and extending educational offerings, and the pursuit thereof, in connection 
with the College.  A summary of the Foundation’s significant accounting policies follows: 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying financial statements are presented using the accrual method of accounting in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).  The net assets, 
revenues, gains and losses, and other support and expenses in the accompanying financial statements are 
classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.  Accordingly, for reporting 
purposes, net assets of the Foundation and changes therein are classified as follows: 

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions 
Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations. They are available to support the 
Foundation’s operations.  Included within these net assets are some Board designated net assets 
which are to be used for specific purposes but may, at the board’s discretion, subsequently be used 
for other purposes. 

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions 
Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some donor imposed restrictions are temporary in 
nature that will be met either by actions of the Foundation and/or passage of time.  When a restriction 
expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in 
the statements of activities as net assets released from restriction. Other donor-imposed restrictions 
are maintained permanently by the Foundation.  Generally, the donors of these assets permit the 
Foundation to use all or a part of the income earned on any related investments for general or specific 
purposes. 

Unconditional Promises to Give 

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenues in the period received.  
Unconditional promises to give due within one year are reported at their net realizable value. FASB Statement 
116 requires that an Allowance for Uncollectable Pledges be used; however, based on management 
judgment, past history, and the rare occurrences of pledges not being fulfilled, management has decided not 
to use an Allowance for Uncollectable Pledges account as any allowance would be immaterial. 

Unconditional promises to give, due in subsequent years are reported on the present value of their net 
realizable value, using an appropriate discount rate.  Amortization of discounts is included in contribution 
revenue.   

Conditional promises to give are not recognized until they become unconditional, that is when the conditions 
on which they depend are substantially met.  Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at fair value 
on the date of the donation.  In the absence of any stipulations, contributions of property and equipment are 
recorded as unrestricted support. 
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Donated Materials and Services 

Donated materials and services are reflected as contributions in the accompanying financial statements at 
their estimated fair market values at the date of receipt.  Contributed services are recognized if they require 
specialized skills that would have been purchased had they not been contributed. 

Cash and Investment Cash 

For purposes of reporting on the statements of cash flows, the Foundation considers all checking accounts 
as cash, except those held in an investment portfolio. As of June 30, 2019, cash totaled $3,437,882 of which 
$2,441,204 was restricted by donors for scholarships and support of academic programs.  Invested cash 
consists of short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, 
including savings accounts, money market accounts, and time deposit with a duration of less than 90 days at 
acquisition . 

Investments 

The Foundation has investments which include an investment portfolio with Morgan Stanley and invested 
funds in the University of Washington’s Consolidated Endowment Fund (CEF).  

In 2014, the Foundation established an investment portfolio with Morgan Stanley: 

Morgan Stanley 
2019 

Cash and Money Market  $           1,349,715 
Mutual Funds  426,301 
Certificates of Deposit     1,202,255 
Total  $           2,978,271 

Most investments are classified as noncurrent regardless of maturity due to the long-term nature of the 
portfolio.  The estimated fair values may differ significantly from the values that would have been used had a 
ready market for those securities existed. 

The annual change in market value of investments is recorded as “Investment income” in the statements of 
activities. The percentage participation allocation method is used to allocate all investment income, including 
realized and unrealized gains and losses, to the various funds based on a percentage of interest in the pooled 
investment. 

The Foundation began investing in the University of Washington’s Consolidated Endowment Fund in 2003.  

Asset allocation of the CEF at June 30 was as follows:  

      University of Washington Consolidated Endowment Fund (CEF) 
Fair Market Value as of June: 

2019 
Total Units at U of W      36,487,704 
Value per Unit  $            98.334 
Total  value at U of W  $       3,588,000,000 
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TESC Foundation Portion 

Total Units       146,049 

Value per Unit  $        98.334 

Total TESC Foundation Portion  $        14,361,698 

The fair value of the CEF is based on a per unit valuation, which is based on the estimated fair value of the 
underlying investments.  The fair value of debt and equity securities with a readily determinable fair value is 
based on quotations from national securities exchanges. The alternative investments, which are not readily 
marketable, are carried at the estimate fair values provided by the investment managers.  The Foundation 
can redeem units in the CEF at the end of a calendar quarter. 

At June 30, 2019, an additional $415,406 was held by the University of Washington pending investment 
purchases.   

Fair Value Measurements 

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Inputs refer broadly to the 
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about 
risk.  The fair value hierarchy prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value into three broad levels.  The 
three levels of the fair value hierarchy are defined as follows: 

Level 1- Inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the 
reporting date. 

Level 2- Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly, as of the reporting date. 

Level 3- Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability that reflect management’s own assumptions 
about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability as of the 
reporting date. 

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value 
on a recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying statement of financial position, as well as the 
general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy. There have been no 
changes in valuation methodologies used at June 30, 2019. 

Common stock, is valued at the closing price reported on the active markets on which the individual 
securities are traded. 

Mutual funds (Equity and Fixed Income), shares of mutual funds are valued at the net asset value 
(NAV) of shares held by the University and are valued at the closing price reported on the active market 
on which the individual securities are traded. 

Assets listed at fair market value are listed in the note (Fair Value of Financial Measurements). 
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Credit and Market Risk 

The Foundation’s investments consist of financial instruments including interest-bearing deposits, and 
investments in the CEF and with Morgan Stanley.  These financial instruments may subject the Foundation to 
concentrations of credit risk, and from time to time, cash balances may exceed amounts insured by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation.  Management believes the risk with respect to the balances is minimal, due 
to the high credit rating of the institutions used.   

Investment securities are exposed to various risks including, but not limited to, interest rate, market and credit 
risks.  Due to the level of risks associated with certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible 
that changes in the values of investment securities will occur in the near term.  To manage these risks, the 
Foundation has an investment policy designed to provide optimal return within reasonable risk tolerances.  

Split-Interest Agreements 

Under these agreements, donors initially make gifts directly to the Foundation.  The Foundation has 
beneficial interest, and records an asset related to the agreements at fair market value. 

In December 2015, the Foundation became a 50% beneficiary of a Charitable Lead Annuity Trust split-
interest agreement.  The basis of recognition for the revenue is the present value of the future cash flow for 
the expected annuity payment.  

Federal Income Taxes 

The Foundation is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
Income from certain activities not directly related to the Foundation’s tax-exempt purpose would be subject to 
taxation as unrelated business income.  The Foundation did not engage in any activity unrelated to its tax-
exempt purpose; accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in the accompanying financial 
statements.  In accordance with requirements related to accounting for uncertainties in income taxes, the 
Foundation has determined they have no uncertain tax positions at June 30, 2019.  The fiscal years ended 
June 30, 2019, 2018, 2017 and 2016 remain open for examination by taxing authorities. 

Financial Statement Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that may affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, if applicable, 
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  

Allocation of Functional Expenses 

Expenses are charged to program services, fundraising and management, and general categories based on 
direct expenditures incurred.  Any expenditure not directly chargeable to a functional expense category is 
allocated based on labor costs, square footage rates for space, and the cost of shared usage of supplies and 
equipment. 

Related Parties 

The Foundation has a quid pro quo agreement with the College.  The College provides personnel, including 
management, accounting and clerical support.  The College also provides office space and various other 
non-personnel support of the Foundation. The services provided without cost are recognized as in-kind 
revenues and expenses. 
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Fund-Raising 

Fund-raising expenses include costs to solicit donations through annual giving, major giving, planned giving, 
and corporation and Foundation giving. 

New Accounting Pronouncements 

In May 2014, the FASB issued Revenue from Contracts with Customers, (ASU No. 2014-09).  This ASU 
outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with 
customers and supersedes most current revenue recognition guidance, including industry-specific guidance.  
For nonpublic entities, the amendments are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, 
beginning after December 15, 2018.  The Foundation is currently evaluating the impact this ASU will have on 
the financial statements. 

In February 2016, the FASB issued Leases, (ASU No. 2016-02).  This Update was issued to increase the 
transparency and comparability among organizations by requiring lessees to recognize the assets and 
liabilities associated with all leases on the statement of financial position.  The amendments in this Update 
are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019.  The Foundation is currently evaluating the 
impact this ASU will have on the financial statements.  

Financial statement presentation – The Foundation has implemented Accounting Standards Update 
(ASU) 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit 
Entities, and has adjusted the presentation in these financial statements accordingly, including changes to 
the presentation of net asset classification in the financial statements, inclusion of information about liquidity 
and availability of resources (Note 15), and inclusion of information provided about expenses by natural and 
functional classification and methods used to allocate costs across the different functions. Net assets, 
revenues, gains and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 
Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as follows: 

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions 
Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.  They are available to support the 
Foundation’s operations.  Included within these net assets are Board designated net assets which 
are to be used for specific purposes but may, at the board’s discretion, subsequently be used for 
other purposes. 

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions 
Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some donor imposed restrictions are temporary in 
nature that will be met either by actions of the Foundation and/or passage of time.  When a 
restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and 
reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from restriction. Other donor-imposed 
restrictions are maintained permanently by the Foundation.  Generally, the donors of these assets 
permit the Foundation to use all or a part of the income earned on any related investments for 
general or specific purposes. 

Revenues are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless use of the related assets 
is limited by donor-imposed restrictions. Expenses are reported as decreases in net assets without donor 
restrictions. Gains or losses on donor-restricted endowment investments are reported as increases or 
decreases in net assets with donor restrictions until appropriated by the Board of Governors. Gains and 
losses on non-endowment investments and other assets or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases 
in net assets without donor restrictions unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation. Expirations 
of restrictions on net assets with donor restrictions (i.e., the donor-stipulated purpose has been fulfilled or the 
stipulated time period has elapsed) are reported on the statements of activities as net assets released from 
restriction. 
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NOTE 2 – UNCONDITIONAL PROMISES TO GIVE 

Unconditional promises to give at June 30 are as follows: 

2019 
Receivable in less than one year  $       66,345 
Receivable in one to five years  33,330 
Long-term pledge receivable discount   (1,198) 
      Total Unconditional Promises to Give  $       98,477 

These promises to give are for scholarships and support of academic programs. 

The discount rates are based on what the risk free applicable federal long-term rates were at the time each 
unconditional promise to give was made.  The rates range from 1.95% and 2.89% and the total discount for 
the long-term promises to give as of June 30, 2019 is $1,198.  

NOTE 3 – INVESTMENTS    

Long and short term investments, net of management fees, are as follows at June 30:  

2019 
Cash  $           6 
Money market     1,349,709 
Certificates of deposit    1,202,255 
Mutual funds        426,301 
Investment in the University of Washington 
    Consolidated endowment fund   14,777,104 
         Total Investments  $        17,755,375 

Investment income included on the accompanying statement of activities is as follows for the years ended 
June 30:  

2019 

Interest and dividend income  $      546,900 

Net realized/ unrealized gains on investments 270,257 

   Total Investment Loss/income  $         817,157 



THE EVERGREEN STATE COLLEGE FOUNDATION 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

NOTE 4 – ENDOWMENTS 

The net asset classification of endowment funds for a not-for-profit is subject to an enacted version of the 
Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act of 2006 (UPMIFA). 

The Foundation has interpreted the enacted version of UPMIFA for Washington State and determined that 
requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift at the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment 
funds, absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary, is appropriate.  As a result of this interpretation, the 
Foundation classifies as net assets with donor restrictions: a) the original value of the gifts donated to the 
endowment with donor restrictions, b) the original value of subsequent gifts, if any, to the endowment with 
donor restrictions, and c) accumulations to the endowment with donor restrictions, as applicable, made in 
accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to 
the fund. 

The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified as net assets with donor 
restrictions is classified as net assets with donor restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for 
expenditure by the Foundation in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA.  
In accordance with UPMIFA, the Foundation considers the following factors in making a determination to 
appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: 

1. The duration and preservation of the fund
2. The purposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund
3. General economic conditions
4. The possible effects of inflation and deflation
5. The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments
6. The investment policies of the Foundation

For board designated endowment funds, the Foundation classifies as net assets with donor restrictions, a) the 
original value of the gifts fund that the board designated to the endowment, and b) the original value of 
subsequent gifts funds designated, if any, to the endowment fund. 

The remaining portion of the board designated endowment fund that is not classified as net assets with donor 
restrictions is classified as net assets without donor restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for 
expenditure by the Foundation. 

Endowment by type of fund as of June 30: 

Without Donor With Donor 
2019 Restrictions Restrictions Total 

Donor-restricted endowment funds  $        -    $    13,091,098  $  13,091,098 
Board-designated endowment funds 894,913   937,552 1,832,465 

Total Funds  $         894,913  $    14,028,650  $  14,923,563 
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Funds with Deficiencies 

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor restricted endowment funds may 
fall below the level that the donor requires the Foundation to retain as a fund of perpetual duration.  In 
accordance with GAAP, deficiencies of this nature are required to be reported in unrestricted net assets. 
There were no deficiencies of this nature as of June 30, 2019.   

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters 

The Foundation has adopted objectives that seek to provide permanent funding for endowed programs while 
maintaining the purchasing power of any endowment after spending and inflation.   Over time, long-term 
rates of return should be sufficient to provide a predictable and stable source of income for endowed 
programs and to provide a maximum level of return consistent with prudent risk levels.  These objectives 
assume the construction of a global, equity-oriented, diversified portfolio coupled with active risk 
management. 

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives  

To achieve its investment objective, the Foundation invests most of its funds in the University of Washington’s 
CEF. It is divided into sub-categories, each with its own targeted allocation. Over the long run, the allocation 
between and within the subcategories may be the single most important determinant of the CEF’s investment 
performance. (Note: Percentages may not sum due to rounding). 
CEF Asset Allocation as of June 30, 2019: 

Investment Strategy Long-term Target 

Emerging Markets Equity 19% 

Developed Markets Equity 32% 

Private Equity 13% 

Real Assets 5% 

Opportunistic 2% 

Absolute Return 18% 

Fixed Income 11% 

Changes in Endowment net assets for the year ended June 30: 

Without Donor With Donor 
2019 Restrictions Restrictions Total 

Endowment net assets, beginning of year  $         662,468  $  13,759,109  $  14,421,577 
Investment return 89,945 685,578 775,523 
Contributions, net of transfers    142,500 150,665 293,165 
Net assets released - (566,702)         (566,702) 

Endowment net assets, end of year  $        894,913  $  14,028,650  $  14,923,563 
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Spending Policy and How the Investment Objectives Relate to Spending Policy 

The Foundation has a policy of appropriating for distributions each year based on the following allocation: 

The Foundation uses a weighted average or hybrid method of determining spending from Foundation 
Endowments.  Spending is calculated by taking a weighted average comprising 80% of the prior year’s 
spending adjusted by an inflation factor and 20% of the amount that results when the endowment’s spending 
rate is applied to the endowment market value. The Foundation spending rate shall generally be 5%.  The 
spending rate for new endowments shall be established beginning the end of the second year of investment.  
The initial endowment spending shall be based on 5% of the first two years’ rolling average.  

In calculating the spending, the market value of the endowment shall be reduced by the total value of new 
contributions given to the endowment in the past fiscal year. The inflation factor shall be equal to the CPI 
except that it shall never fall below 0% nor exceed 5%. The minimum scholarship award level is $1,000.  If 
the spending formula for a scholarship endowment generates a calculation for a scholarship award of less 
than $1,000, no distribution will be taken for that fiscal year and the scholarship will not be awarded.  

NOTE 5 – FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL MEASUREMENTS 

The Foundation has determined the fair value of certain assets and liabilities through the application of FASB 
ASC 820-10 Fair Value Measurements.   

Fair Value of assets measured on a recurring basis at June 30 is as follows: 

 Year Ended June 30, 2019 

 Quoted 
Market Prices 

in Active 
Markets 

 Other 
Observable 

Inputs 
Unobservabl

e Inputs 

 (Level 1)  (Level 2)  (Level 3)  Total 
Cash and money market  $             -  $  1,349,715  $            -   $ 1,349,715 

Certificates of deposit 1,202,255 1,202,255 

Mutual funds 426,301 426,301 
Consolidated endowment 
fund (CEF) 14,777,104 14,777,104 

Charitable lead annuity trust 1,543,883 1,543,883 

Total assets at fair value 
 $      
-    $19,299,258  $            -  $19,299,258 

NOTE 6 – CHARITABLE GIFT ANNUITIES 

Certain donors have entered into charitable gift annuity agreements with the Foundation under which the 
Foundation received certain assets.   

In December 2015, the Foundation became a beneficiary of a split interest agreement via a Charitable Lead 
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Annuity Trust (CLAT).  The CLAT is a $5 million trust in which the Foundation is a 50% beneficiary, with the 
Foundation anticipating $2.25 million in payments over the life of the agreement.  The 15 year annuity payout 
is $300,000 each year of which the Foundation receives 50%.  The basis of recognition for the revenue is the 
present value of the future cash flow for the expected annuity payment. The discount rate applied is 2.61%. 
At the end of the 15 year period, the donor will receive the remaining balance of the trust. 

The Charitable Lead Annuity Trust present value at June 30 is as follows: 

2019 
Due in less than one year  $            150,000 
Due in one to five years 750,000 
Due in five years or more 896,302 
Discount (252,419) 

Total  $         1,543,883 

NOTE 7 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Foundation provided grants to the College totaling $1,152,199 for the year ended June 30, 2019. During 
the year ended June 30, 2019, the Foundation also provided $722,990 to the College for student 
scholarships and fellowships. These amounts are included in the grants and allocations total shown on the 
statements of functional expenses. 

The Foundation receives substantial contributed support services under an agreement with the College. 
These services are included in both support and revenues and also in expenses on the accompanying 
Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets. See Note 11 for additional in-kind support information. 

Amounts payable to the college was $201,141 as of June 30, 2019.  

NOTE 8 – RELEASE OF NET ASSETS 

Net assets of $1,756,083 was released from donor restrictions for the year ended June 30, 2019, by incurring 
expenses satisfying the restricted purposes or by the occurrences of other events specified by the donors. 

NOTE 9 – NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTION 

Net assets with donor restrictions support the following:  

2019 
Academic Support and Research  $  6,918,729 
Other College Support      1,129,917 
Public Service Centers         318,286 
Student Aid    12,333,700 

Total Net Assets With Donor Restriction  $20,700,632 
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NOTE 10 – CONCENTRATIONS 

Major Donors 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Foundation received contributions from ten sources that comprised 
approximately 62% of total contribution revenue.   

NOTE 11 – IN-KIND SUPPORT 

The Foundation receives substantial contributed support services under an agreement with the College.  
These services are included in both support and revenues and also in expenses on the accompanying 
statements of activities and changes in net assets.  In addition, the Foundation receives in-kind donations 
from individuals and corporations, which are included in gifts and contributions.   

Donated materials and services are as follows for the years ended June 30: 

2019 
From individual and corporate donors: 

Stock  $     447,843 
Art Work  23,384 
Materials  37,294 

Total in-kind support from individuals and corporate donors      508,521 

From the College 
Management services    1,139,031 
Rent  18,916 
Supplies and equipment usage         166,920 

Total in-kind support from the College       1,324,867 

Total in-kind support  $  1,833,388 

NOTE 12 – LEASES 

In May 2014, the Foundation entered into a new long-term operating lease for a vehicle which was renewed 
in April 2017, and will expire in April, 2020.  Lease expense totaled $6,927 for the year ended June 30, 2019.  
Minimum required annual lease payments thru 2019 are $6,864. 

NOTE 13 – ADMINISTRATIVE FEES 

The Foundation charges a 5% administrative fee to restricted, and some unrestricted funds, and transfers this 
amount to unrestricted net assets to cover funds management, fundraising expenses, and administration 
expenses.  The Foundation charged $84,150 in administrative fees for the year ended June 30, 2019.  
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NOTE 14 – SCHOLARSHIPS FOR FUTURE PERIODS  

In April, May and June of each year, students receive notice of their scholarship awards for the following 
academic year.  These scholarship funds remain in the Foundation until August or September.  The 
scholarships are reclassified into their own internal account for tracking purposes. In August or September, 
the Foundation transfers the funds to the College and then the College applies the funds to the student 
accounts.  The amount and number of scholarships varies from year to year.  The annual scholarship 
amount and number of scholarships to be awarded is determined by the following:  

1. Donor intent as defined in gift agreement
2. Foundation spending policy
3. For unrestricted scholarships, determined by the board
4. Number of awards from larger scholarship funds is determined by judgment of college staff if donor

does not express a preference (i.e. is it better to have two $1,000 scholarships or one $2,000
scholarship)

As of June 30, 2019, the Foundation was holding funds earmarked for academic year 2019-2020 
scholarships in the amount of $802,060.  Of those amounts $437,115 was available for endowment based 
scholarships, and $364,945 was available for one-time scholarships on June 30, 2019.  

Though the entire amount of the funds held are available for scholarships, not all of the scholarship offers 
are accepted.  Additionally, there are times when students accept their scholarship offer but end up not 
being enrolled in the new academic year or are no longer qualified for the scholarship when classes begin; 
thereby leaving the scholarship unused.  Any unused scholarship funds are returned to the Foundation and 
are held for future scholarships in the following academic year.   

NOTE 15 – LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY 

An analysis of asset accounts at fiscal year-end June 30, 2019, occurred to determine which are liquid and 
which are illiquid. 

The following table provides a summary of the Foundation’s financial assets, reduced by those unavailable 
for general expenditure within one year, to determine the amount of financial asset available to meet cash 
needs for general expenditure within one year. 

2019 
Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 3,437,882 
Investment cash     1,349,715 
Beneficial interest in lead trust     1,543,883 
Contributions receivable net           98,477 
Other receivables        -  
Investments   16,405,660 

Financial assets, at year end   22,835,617 
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Less those unavailable for general expenditure within one year: 

Beneficial interest in lead trust - collectible beyond one year     1,393,883 
Contributions receivable - collectible beyond one year          32,132 
Long term investments    16,405,660 

  17,831,675 
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general 

expenditures within one year  $ 5,003,942 

NOTE 16 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Foundation has evaluated subsequent events through March 10, 2020, the date on which the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 

The Evergreen State College Foundation is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization dedicated to building an 
outstanding future for The Evergreen State College. Since 1976, the foundation has supported this goal by 
raising private gifts from our generous donors. Donations ensure access for students who may not be able 
to afford the cost of attendance, support faculty research, facilitate work led by the college’s public service 
centers, and much more. The Evergreen State College Foundation I 2700 Evergreen Parkway NW, 
Olympia, WA 98505 I evergreen.edu/foundation (360) 867-6300 
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Pension Plan Information 

Cost Sharing Employer Plans 
Schedules of TESC’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

Schedule of TESC's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) Plan 1 

Measurement Date of June 30 *  
 (dollars in thousands) 

2018 2017 2016 2015 
TESC PERS 1 employers' proportion of the net pension liability  0.13% 0.14% 0.14% 0.14% 

TESC PERS 1 employers' proportionate share of the net pension liability  $5,989  $6,557  $7,484  $7,319 

 TESC PERS 1 employers' covered payroll  $7,641  $7,575  $7,222  $7,128 

TESC PERS 1 employers' proportionate share of the net pension liability as a 
percentage of its covered payroll 

78% 87% 104% 103% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 63.22% 61.24% 57.03% 59.10% 

* As of June 30; this schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data

Schedule of TESC's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) Plan 2/3 

Measurement Date of June 30 *  
 (dollars in thousands) 

2018 2017 2016 2015 
TESC PERS 2/3 employers' proportion of the net pension liability  0.16% 0.16% 0.16% 0.16% 

TESC PERS 2/3 employers' proportionate share of the net pension liability  $2,742  $5,790  $8,111  $5,547 

TESC PERS 2/3 employers' covered payroll  $9,519  $9,275  $8,716  $8,028 

TESC PERS 2/3 employers' proportionate share of the net pension liability as a 
percentage of its covered payroll 

16% 35% 53% 38% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 95.77% 90.97% 85.82% 89.20% 

* As of June 30; this schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data
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Cost Sharing Employer Plans 
Schedules of TESC’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

Schedule of TESC's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
Teachers'  Retirement System (TRS)  Plan 1 

Measurement Date of June 30 *  
 (dollars in thousands) 

2018 2017 2016 2015 
TESC TRS 1 employers' proportion of the net pension liability  0.012% 0.009% 0.009% 0.009% 

TESC TRS 1 employers' proportionate share of the net pension liability  $   357  $   259  $   321  $   273 

TESC TRS 1 employers' covered payroll  $   350  $   231  $   228  $   192 

TESC TRS 1 employers' proportionate share of the net pension liability as a 
percentage of its covered payroll 

102% 112% 141% 142% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 66.52% 65.58% 62.07% 65.70% 

* As of June 30; this schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data

Schedule of TESC's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
Teachers' Retirement System (TRS)  Plan 2/3 

Measurement Date of June 30 *  
 (dollars in thousands) 

2018 2017 2016 2015 
TESC TRS 2/3 employers' proportion of the net pension liability  0.012% 0.009% 0.010% 0.009% 

TESC TRS 2/3 employers' proportionate share of the net pension liability  $     56  $     81  $   132  $     77 

TESC TRS 2/3 employers' covered payroll  $   378  $   249  $   249  $   242 

TESC TRS 2/3 employers' proportionate share of the net pension liability as a 
percentage of its covered payroll 

15% 33% 53% 32% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 96.88% 93.14% 88.72% 92.48% 

* As of June 30; this schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data
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Cost Sharing Employer Plans 
Schedules of TESC’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

Schedule of TESC's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset 
Law Enforcement Officers' and Fire Fighters' Retirement System (LEOFF)  Plan 2 

Measurement Date of June 30 *  
 (dollars in thousands) 

2018 2017 2016 2015 
TESC LEOFF 2 employers' proportion of the net pension liability/(asset) 0.032% 0.033% 0.027% 0.027% 

TESC LEOFF 2 employers' proportionate share of the net pension 
liability/(asset) 

 $  (644)  $  (464)  $  (159)  $  (279) 

TESC LEOFF 2 employers' covered payroll  $     626  $     616  $     506  $     476 

TESC LEOFF 2 employers' proportionate share of the net pension 
liability/(asset) as a percentage  of its covered payroll 

-103% -75% -31% -59%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension 
liability/(asset) 

118.50% 113.36% 106.04% 111.67% 

* As of June 30; this schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 
TESC SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT PLAN (TESCRP) 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 *  

 (dollars in thousands) 
2019 2018 2017 

TESCRP total pension liability  $      6,818   $5,980  $6,510 

TESCRP employers' covered payroll  $    14,999 $15,978 $16,941 

TESCRP total pension liability as a percentage of its covered payroll 45.46% 37.43% 38.43% 

* As of June 30; this schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data
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Cost Sharing Employer Plans 
Schedules of Contributions 

Schedule of Contributions 
Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) Plan 1 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 * 

Fiscal 
Year 

Contractually 
Required 

Contributions 

Contributions in Relation to 
the Contractually Required 

Contributions 

Contribution 
deficiency 
(excess) 

Covered- 
employee 

payroll 

Contributions as a 
percentage of covered 

employee payroll 
2015  $              658,311   $ 658,311   $ - $         7,128,031  9.24% 
2016  $              807,716   $ 807,716   $ - $         7,221,683  11.18% 
2017  $              846,770   $ 846,770   $ - $         7,575,129  11.18% 
2018  $              970,954   $ 970,954   $ - $         7,641,081  12.71% 
2019  $              866,152   $ 866,152   $ - $         6,761,755  12.81% 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

* As of June 30; this schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data

Schedule of Contributions 
Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) Plan 2/3 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 * 

Fiscal 
Year 

Contractually 
Required 

Contributions 

Contributions in Relation 
to the Contractually 

Required Contributions 

Contribution 
deficiency 
(excess) 

Covered- 
employee 

payroll 

Contributions as a 
percentage of covered 

employee payroll 
2015  $             741,614   $ 741,614   $ - $        8,027,795 9.24% 
2016  $             974,930   $ 974,930   $ - $        8,716,432 11.18% 
2017  $         1,036,829   $ 1,036,829   $ - $        9,275,481 11.18% 
2018  $          1,209,592   $ 1,209,592   $ - $        9,518,729 12.71% 
2019  $          1,213,225   $ 1,213,225   $ - $        9,471,016 12.81% 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

* As of June 30; this schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data
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Schedules of Contributions 

Schedule of Contributions 
Teachers' Retirement System (TRS)  Plan 1 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 * 

Fiscal 
Year 

Contractually 
Required 

Contributions 

Contributions in Relation to 
the Contractually Required 

Contributions 

Contribution 
deficiency 
(excess) 

Covered- 
employee payroll 

Contributions as a 
percentage of covered 

employee payroll 

2015  $ 19,994   $                  19,994   $ - $             192,440  10.39% 
2016  $ 29,418   $                  29,418   $ - $             227,538  12.93% 
2017  $ 30,344   $                  30,344   $ - $             231,102  13.13% 
2018  $ 52,739   $                  52,739   $ - $             350,470  15.05% 
2019  $ 60,608   $     60,608   $ - $             393,781  15.39% 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

* As of June 30; this schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data

Schedule of Contributions 
Teachers' Retirement System (TRS)  Plan 2/3 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 * 

Fiscal 
Year 

Contractually 
Required 

Contributions 

Contributions in Relation to 
the Contractually Required 

Contributions 

Contribution 
deficiency 
(excess) 

Covered- 
employee payroll 

Contributions as a 
percentage of covered 

employee payroll 
2015  $                 25,154   $                  25,154   $ - $             242,099  10.39% 
2016  $ 32,247   $                  32,247   $ - $             249,420  12.93% 
2017  $ 32,730   $                  32,730   $ - $             249,274  13.13% 
2018  $                 56,886   $                  56,886   $ - $             378,029  15.05% 
2019  $ 65,944   $   65,944   $ - $             428,451  15.39% 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

* As of June 30; this schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data
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Cost Sharing Employer Plans 
Schedules of Contributions 

Schedule of Contributions 
Law Enforcement Officers' and Fire Fighters' Retirement System (LEOFF)  Plan 2 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 * 

Fiscal 
Year 

Contractually 
Required 

Contributions 

Contributions in Relation to 
the Contractually Required 

Contributions 

Contribution 
deficiency 
(excess) 

Covered- 
employee payroll 

Contributions as a 
percentage of covered 

employee payroll 
2015  $ 42,171   $                   42,171   $ - $             475,825  8.59% 
2016  $ 43,518   $      43,518   $ - $             506,618  8.59% 
2017  $ 53,438   $                   53,438   $ - $             616,461  8.67% 
2018  $ 55,923   $                   55,923   $ - $             626,237  8.93% 
2019  $ 66,545   $      66,545   $ - $             745,186  8.93% 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

* As of June 30; this schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data

Schedule of Contributions 
TESC Supplemental Retirement Plan 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 * 

Fiscal 
Year 

Contractually 
Required 

Contributions 

Contributions in Relation to 
the Contractually Required 

Contributions 

Contribution 
deficiency 
(excess) 

Covered- employee 
payroll 

Contributions as a 
percentage of covered 

employee payroll 

2017  $     2,147,117   $   2,147,117   $ - $           24,885,814  8.63% 
2018  $     2,072,140   $   2,072,140   $ - $           23,782,744  8.71% 
2019  $     1,972,547   $   1,972,547   $   - $           22,796,919  8.65% 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 

* As of June 30; this schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data



OPEB Information 

Cost Sharing Healthcare Plans 
Schedules of TESC’s Changes in Total OPEB Liability 

Schedule of TESC’s Changes in Total OPEB Liability 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30* 

2019 2018 

Service Cost  $        1,723,003   $       2,304,831  

Interest            1,184,555            1,079,597  

Difference between expected and actual expense            1,081,268  -  

Changes of assumptions           (7,543,053)          (5,266,293) 

Changes of benefit terms -  -  

Benefit Payments              (500,297)             (550,180) 

Change in Proportionate Share           (2,384,556)                58,800  

Other -  -  

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability           (6,439,080)          (2,373,245) 

Total OPEB Liability - Beginning          33,997,619          36,370,864  

Total OPEB Liability - Ending  $      27,558,539   $     33,997,619  

College's proportion of the Total OPEB Liability  0.54263691% 0.58356771% 

Covered Payroll  $      43,207,595   $     44,706,632  

Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 63.78% 76.05% 

* As of June 30; this schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data
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